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STATE OF INDIANA

AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA)

Request for Proposals 09-SEP05-1
The Indiana Office of Energy Development

Solicitation For:

INDIANA STATE ENERGY PROGRAM (SEP)

MARKET FIVE – 

(Promote the Use of Green and Renewable Energy Generation Facilities, Products, and Its Supply Chain for the Purpose of Reducing Greenhouse Gases)
Response Due Date:  August 28, 2009
SECTION ONE

GENERAL INFORMATION AND FUNDING OPPORTUNITY DESCRIPTION

1.1 INTRODUCTION

The Indiana Office of Energy Development (IOED) is issuing this Request for Proposal (RFP) for a competitive loan program with the Indiana Office of Energy Development (IOED) that encourages the purchase or financing of equipment that will provide for the rapid deployment of certain alternative and renewable energy technologies. This RFP details the submission requirements of the loan program established under Market 5 of the Indiana State Energy Program (SEP) titled Promote the Use of Green and Renewable Energy Generation Facilities, Products, and Its Supply Chain for the Purpose of Reducing Greenhouse Gases (GHG) (the Program).  Funding for this opportunity has been allocated to the IOED from the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009.  It is the intent of IOED to solicit responses to this RFP in accordance with the project objectives, the proposal preparation section, and specifications contained in this document.  This RFP is being posted to the IOED website http://www.in.gov/oed/ for downloading.  Neither this RFP nor any response (proposal) submitted hereto are to be construed as a legal offer.
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA)

The ARRA appropriates funding for DOE to issue formula-based grants under SEP.  DOE is responsible for overseeing and managing the allocation and the use of ARRA funds distributed to the various states. The results achieved with SEP ARRA funds, in addition to the rapid deployment of alternative and renewable energy technologies, will be assessed to consider the following performance metrics: jobs created, funds leveraged, energy (kwh/therms/gallons/BTUs/etc) saved, GHG emissions reduced (CO2 equivalents), and air pollutants reduced.

1.2 PURPOSE OF THE RFP

The purpose of this RFP is to solicit applications for the Program, which establishes a flexible revolving loan fund to encourage the purchase or financing of equipment that provides for the rapid deployment of alternative and renewable energy technologies that will serve to promote domestic security by limiting our dependence on foreign oil, and creating new clean means of generating, storing and implementing clean technologies for commercial and consumer purposes.  By providing low-cost equipment financing, the Program accelerates the deployment of alternative and renewable energy technologies that will contribute to the reduction of use of any one, or collectively among all, of the categories of non-renewable energy by at least 50%.

The Program also focuses on the creation of jobs, the promotion of speedy project completion, the realization of measurable energy efficiency savings, and greater statewide energy diversification. It is intended to match the State’s ongoing environmental goals with the urgent imperative of economic relief and the strategic goal of long-term, sustainable economic growth through deployment of new energy technology.  Building upon its existing infrastructure in renewable energy, Indiana will use its Program funding to work towards DOE’s national efficiency and diversification goals of ten percent (10%) of electricity supply from renewable sources by 2012 and twenty-five percent (25%) by 2025.  Ultimately, Indiana intends to lead the market transformation toward a more environmentally friendly economy by strategically allocating our assets. 

Loans or grants under the Program will be made, consistent with the SEP, and in a manner which is determined to be in the best interests of the State of Indiana (Loans).  The Loan proceeds will be funded through ARRA and are subject to the reporting and operational requirements of the legislation.  Applicants to this RFP (Applicants) must acknowledge their ability to comply with and their responsibility for all record keeping and reporting requirements defined by the Federal Government for ARRA funds.   Reports required by Federal agencies and the State of Indiana shall include, but will not be limited to, performance indicators of program deliverables, information on costs and progress against timelines.  Specific Federal reporting requirements are listed in this RFP and can also be found at http://www.federalreporting.gov/, when available. Any Applicant awarded a Loan (Loan Recipient) is expected to adhere to all reporting requirements.

Additionally, each loan provided from ARRA funds is subject to review and examination by appropriate federal or state entities.   Failure to comply with the terms, conditions and requirements of ARRA may result in the recapture of the balance of Loan funds awarded.  

1.3 TYPE OF AWARD

The State intends to award Loans to one or more Applicants responding to this RFP.  All Loan Recipients will be required to comply with the provisions identified in the RFP and the Loan documentation package, which is attached hereto as Attachment A (Loan Documents).  In the event the terms of a Loan violate or preclude other project financings for a successful applicant, IOED may in its discretion allow a limited amount of Loans under the Program to be converted to grants.  Any such conversion shall be based on IOED’s determination that a conversion of a Loan to a grant is necessary for the success of the project and that any such conversion is consistent with Indiana’s long-term strategic renewable and alternative energy objectives.
The terms of any Loans awarded under this RFP shall be as set forth in the definitive, legally-binding Loan Documents to be entered into by and between the IOED and each Loan Recipient, and will include the following terms:
· Provided that no event of default has occurred, principal and interest payments on the Loan funds will be payable quarterly with an interest rate of two and one half percent (2.5%) per annum.  Payments will be due on the 15th of October, January, April, and July (each a “Payment Date”), commencing the second payment date after closing on the Loan.  
· The Loan term will be no longer than the shorter of (i) ten (10) years from the first Payment Date following date of this RFP; or (ii) the projected useful life of the equipment financed with the Loan proceeds , as determined for federal income tax purposes.
· Principal repayment will be amortized on a straight-line basis for the term of the Loan.
· The Loan will be secured by a first lien security interest on all equipment purchased with the Loan proceeds.
· The Loan documentation will establish a procedure for the submission of information periodically by an Applicant to determine an Applicant’s compliance with the terms and conditions of this RFP and the Program, including information to establish net new job creation in the State of Indiana as required under the Project Objectives (Section 1.7).
· Applicant will be required to first purchase and install any equipment proposed to be financed with Loan proceeds prior to seeking reimbursement from the IOED from the Loan proceeds.  It is the policy of IOED to fund approved disbursement requests within approximately sixty (60) days.

1.4 ESTIMATED FUNDING

The IOED anticipates awarding a total of approximately $10,000,000 under this RFP, subject to the availability of funds and the quality of applications received.  The maximum Loan amount under the Program shall not exceed the lesser of (i) 50% of the total project cost; or (ii) $5,000,000 per project.  The maximum Loan proceeds that may be converted to grants under this RFP may not exceed $5,000,000.  All Loan Documents must be executed within forty-five (45) days following final approval of a Loan by the IOED under the terms of this RFP (Closing Date); provided, however, that the Closing Date may be extended by IOED in its sole discretion to a date not later than March 31, 2010.  All Loan proceeds must be disbursed to Loan Recipients by September 30, 2011 (Completion Date).  Loan closings must occur as quickly as possible, subject to compliance with all terms of this RFP and the Loan documents.  Therefore, any Applicant whose Project (as defined in Section 1.7) is estimated to be unable to close within the designated period for closing and disbursement of proceeds may be rejected.  Applicants will be responsible for any closing costs or reasonable legal fees incurred by IDOE to complete the Loan documents.  This RFP is being issued contemporaneously with Request for Proposals 09-SEP04-1 for Market 4 of the SEP Plan (“Market 4 RFP”).  Applicants that qualify may apply under both this RFP and the Market 4 RFP provided that they specify which RFP best achieves the Applicant’s objectives.  This RFP focuses more specifically on reducing the end-use of non-renewable sources of energy while the Market 4 RFP focuses more specifically on accelerating renewable energy products to market.  The total amount awarded a project submitted under this RFP and the Market 4 RFP shall not collectively exceed $5,000,000.00, with proposals first being considered under the RFP that the Applicant specifies best achieves the Applicant’s objectives.
1.5 LEVERAGE

A criterion for award under this RFP is the amount of additional financial support provided by the Applicant or others, other than any Loan awarded hereunder, to support the proposed Project.  At a minimum, an Applicant must have leverage of at least one dollar of additional financial support for each dollar of Loan proceeds.
1.6 ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS

Eligible Loan Applicants include private, for profit entities establishing or expanding their presence in the State of Indiana.  The following are NOT eligible to apply for these Loan Agreements: Nonprofit Organizations, Units of Local Government, Educational Institutions, State Agencies, Utilities, Industries, Indian Tribes or Public Entities.

1.7 PROJECT OBJECTIVES
In order to be eligible for a Loan under the Program, an Applicant’s project submitted for funding (Project) must meet the following requirements:
· The Project establishes, expands or re-equips a manufacturing facility for the production of property (including individual component parts thereof) specifically designed to be used to produce energy from renewable sources including wind and solar which would make substantial contributions to energy efficiency and conservation (referred to collectively as “Renewable Energy Products”). 
· The Project must utilize Loan funds to purchase or finance equipment critical to the establishment, expansion and re-equipping of its manufacturing facility for Renewable Energy Products, whose deployment will reduce energy use versus traditional or older model products by up to 50% relative to current industry standard, based on the energy source being replaced.
· The Renewable Energy Products manufactured by the Applicant will contribute to the reduction of the end-use of non-renewable sources of energy and a corresponding overall reduction in carbon footprint.
· The receipt of a Loan will have a substantial positive impact on the Applicant’s ability to complete the Project or to obtain additional financing to complete the Project or more quickly proceed with the Project, which will accelerate the creation of jobs and the availability, widespread use and acceptance of Renewable Energy Products in Indiana and elsewhere.  

· Substantially all of the products manufactured, produced or assembled at the Project location will be Renewable Energy Products.  The Applicant must also demonstrate corporate focus and support for furthering the use and market acceptance of Renewable Energy Products.
· The Project will result in the creation of net new full-time employment positions for Indiana residents.  
· The Applicant must demonstrate that it will be able to expend all Loan funds prior to the Completion Date.

· The Project must have documented support from the local community where the Project will be located, including financial support if applicable.
· The Applicant (or the Applicant’s parent or affiliated company) must have a strong track record of successful operations and project implementation with respect to the anticipated creation of jobs and the production of Renewable Energy Products.

· Applicant must be fully compliant with all Indiana Department of Workforce Development and Indiana Department of Revenue requirements and must demonstrate the company’s commitment to investing in its workforce. 
· Applicants must demonstrate the availability of any additional capital investment necessary to complete the Project, including funding from public and private sources and incentives from local, state and federal entities.  Awards to Applicants may be contingent upon securing such additional funding.

1.8 PROHIBITED USE OF FUNDS

In accordance with federal regulations, SEP applicants are prohibited from using SEP financial assistance:

· For construction, including construction of mass transit systems and exclusive bus lanes, or for the construction or repair of buildings or structures;

· To purchase land, a building or structure or any interest therein;

· To subsidize fares for public transportation;

· To subsidize utility rate demonstrations or State tax credits for energy conservation or renewable energy measures; or

· To conduct or purchase equipment to conduct research, development or demonstration of energy efficiency or renewable energy techniques and technologies not already commercially available.

· Funds may not be used for gambling establishments, aquariums, zoos, golf courses or swimming pools as mandated by the ARRA.

1.9 SELECTION PROCESS

Proposals must be submitted to the IOED no later than 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time on August, 28, 2009.  Once the Proposals are received and the IOED determines all appropriate documentation has been submitted, IOED shall convene an advisory group comprised of representatives from various state agencies.  The advisory group shall review all of the Proposals deemed complete in accord with the criteria set forth herein (Section 4.2).  If additional documentation or further investigation is necessary for IOED to recommend awarding a Proposal, IOED will request such documentation or conduct such investigation prior to making an award.  IOED will select Proposals for awards and submit a final list of approved Proposals to the DOE for confirmation, including where necessary confirmation of NEPA compliance or the existence of a categorical exemption from NEPA by DOE.  IOED reserves the right to reject Proposals which are incomplete or not in accord with the SEP objectives.
1.10 PROPOSAL CLARIFICATIONS AND DISCUSSIONS, AND DOCUMENTATION PROCESS AND PROCEDURES

1.10.1
IOED reserves the right to request clarifications on proposals.  IOED also reserves the right to conduct proposal discussions, either oral or written, with Applicants.  These discussions could include requests for additional information, requests for cost, equipment information, financial information, project information or information necessary to satisfy the requirements set forth at Section 2.3, etc.  IOED will provide equivalent information to all Applicants which have been chosen for discussions.  Discussions, along with negotiations with responsible Applicants may be conducted for any appropriate purpose.  The IOED will schedule all discussions.  Any information gathered through oral discussions must be confirmed in writing.  
1.10.2
The Loan Documents contain a sample contract.  Any changes that the Applicant considers mandatory for Applicant to receive an award and expend the Loan funds must be submitted with its Proposal and identified as mandatory changes.  The State will reserve the right to disqualify an Applicant if any mandatory changes are not in the best interest of the State of Indiana or are prohibited by state law or guidelines as determined by the Indiana Attorney General’s Office.  Any requested changes to the Loan Documents must also be submitted, and the State reserves the right to negotiate mutually acceptable changes during the period of negotiations.  To reiterate, it’s the State’s strong desire to not deviate from the attached sample contract.
1.10.3
The IOED may desire to only award a portion of the amount requested by an Applicant in support of its Project and therefore may request additional information or feedback from an Applicant regarding the effect a reduced award may have on the projected impact and success of the Project.

1.10.4
IOED may request a site visit to the Project location or the Applicant’s place of business to assess the effect of the equipment proposed to be purchased and the Project to aid in the evaluation of the Applicant’s proposal.  A failure to promptly allow the State to conduct a site visit may delay a proposed award or otherwise disqualify an Applicant from additional consideration.

1.10.5
IOED reserves the right to award an Applicant contingent upon the Applicant’s satisfaction of certain conditions, including but not limited to, receipt of represented funding commitments, the provision of additional information to IOED confirming representations set forth in Applicant’s Proposal and securing a guaranty from Applicant’s parent company, where deemed appropriate and applicable.  IOED may also alter Applicant’s repayment schedule by deferring principal payments for up to two (2) years if IOED determines that such a deferrable would better in the best interest of the State of Indiana.

SECTION TWO

APPLICATION AND SUBMISSION INFORMATION

2.1 QUESTIONS/INQUIRY PROCESS

All questions/inquiries regarding this RFP must be submitted in writing by the deadline of (5:00 p.m., energyprojectideas@oed.in.govEastern Standard Time on August 18, 2009).  Questions/Inquiries may be submitted via email [] and must be received by the IOED by the time and date indicated above.  

Following the question/inquiry due date, IOED personnel will compile a list of the questions/inquiries submitted by all Applicants.  The responses will be posted to the  IOED website according to the RFP timetable established in Section 2.7.  The question/inquiry and answer link will become active after responses to all questions have been compiled.  Only answers posted on the IOED website will be considered official and valid by the State.  No Applicant shall rely upon, take any action, or make any decision based upon any verbal communication with any State employee.

Inquiries are not to be directed to any staff member of the IOED.  Such action may disqualify Applicant from further consideration for a Loan resulting from this RFP.

If it becomes necessary to revise any part of this RFP, or if additional information is necessary for a clearer interpretation of provisions of this RFP prior to the due date for proposals, an addendum will be posted on the IOED website.
2.2 PROPOSALS FOR SUBMISSION

All proposals must be received at the address below by the IOED no later than 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time on August, 28, 2009.  Applicants are cautioned about sending proposals via mail, no exceptions will be made for applications received by IOED after this date and time.  Each Applicant must submit one original hard-copy (marked “Original”) on CD-ROM of the proposal, including the Transmittal Letter and other related documentation as required in this RFP and ten (10) complete copies of the proposal.  Proposals shall not exceed 15 pages in length, exclusive of all exhibits and attachments and 40 pages in length, including exhibit and attachments.
The original CD-ROM will be considered the Applicant’s official response for purposes of evaluating the Applicant’s Proposal.  Each copy of the proposal must follow the format indicated in Section Two of this document.  Unnecessarily elaborate brochures or other presentations, beyond those necessary to present a complete and effective proposal, are not desired. All proposals must be addressed to:

Indiana Office of Energy Development
101 West Ohio Street, Suite 1250
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

All proposal packages must be clearly marked with the RFP number, due date, and time due. Any proposal received by the IOED after the due date and time will not be considered.  Any late proposals will be returned, unopened, to the Applicant upon request. All rejected Proposals not claimed within 30 days of the Proposal due date will be destroyed.

No more than one proposal per Applicant may be submitted per RFP. 

The State accepts no obligations for costs incurred by Applicants in anticipation of being awarded a Loan.

If recommended for selection, the Applicant's proposal response on this CD may be posted on the IOED website.

2.3 NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT REQUIREMENTS

All Projects receiving financial assistance from the DOE under this SEP RFP must comply with DOE's regulations adopted under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969- 42 U.S.C. Section 4321 et seq. (NEPA).  DOE's NEPA regulations may be found at 10 C.F.R. Part 1021.  

Applicants are encouraged to submit Proposals that will be determined by the DOE to (1) already be determined to be NEPA compliant; or (2) be categorically excluded under 10 C.F.R. 1021.410(b).  Generally, to qualify as categorically excluded, the Project must fit within the class of actions listed in Appendix A or B of DOE's NEPA regulations; there must be no extraordinary circumstances that may affect the environmental effects of the project; and the project must not be connected to other actions with potentially significant impacts.  The DOE will make the final determination of whether a Project is already NEPA compliant or is categorically excluded.  

To be responsive, Applicants must complete DOE Form EF1 or provide relevant information provided by or submitted to a federal government agency and utilized for a determination of NEPA compliance.  A copy of Form EF1 is attached as Attachment B.  To facilitate the DOE's prompt consideration of Projects, applicants are encouraged to include as much relevant and responsive information related to the Project or Project site as possible.
Given the tight SEP funding deadlines, the State of Indiana is not able to consider Projects which have not yet been assessed as NEPA compliant by DOE or which cannot be categorically excluded by DOE quickly.  Applicants are strongly encouraged to familiarize themselves with DOE’s NEPA Requirements.  Questions about DOE’s NEPA requirements and evaluation process should be directed to DOE at 1-800-472-2756.
2.4 COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

Responses to this RFP serve as a representation by the Applicant that it has no current or outstanding criminal, civil, or enforcement actions initiated by the State, and it agrees that it will immediately notify the State of any such actions. The Applicant also certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently in arrears in payment of its taxes, permit fees or other statutory, regulatory or judicially required payments to the State.  The Applicant agrees that the State may confirm, at any time, that no such liabilities exist, and, if such liabilities are discovered, that State may exclude the Applicant’s Proposal from further consideration under this RFP.  

Additionally, all Applicants must execute the Assurances and Certifications documents (shown on pages 22-29).
2.5 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

The Applicant specifically agrees to comply with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq. and 47 U.S.C. 225).

2.6 SUMMARY OF MILESTONES

The following timeline is only an illustration of the RFP process.  The dates associated with each step are not to be considered binding.  Due to the unpredictable nature of the evaluation period, these dates are commonly subject to change.  At the conclusion of the evaluation process, all Applicants will be informed of the evaluation team’s findings.

Key RFP Dates:

	Activity
	Date

	Issue of RFP
	August 12, 2009

	Deadline to Submit Written Questions
	August 18, 2009

	Response to Written Questions/RFP Amendments
	August 21, 2009

	Submission of Proposals
	August 28, 2009 (4:00 p.m.)

	The dates for the following activities are target dates only.  These activities may be completed earlier or later than the date shown.

	Proposal Evaluation
	September 1, 2009

	Award
	September 4, 2009


2.7 CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION

Applicants are advised that materials contained in proposals are subject to the Access to Public Records Act (APRA), IC 5-14-3 et seq.  To the extent feasible and permissible by law, the IOED will honor an applicant’s request that confidential information submitted to IOED will remain confidential.  IOED will treat information as confidential only if: (i) the information is, in fact, protected confidential information such as trade secrets or privileged or confidential commercial or financial information; (ii) the information is specifically marked or identified as confidential by the applicant; (iii) the information is segregated and placed in a separate appendix to the application; and (iv) no disclosure of the information is required by law, as determined by IOED or the Public Access Counselor, or by judicial order.  If the application results in award of a loan, the honoring of confidentiality of identified data shall not limit the right of IOED to disclose the details and results of the loan to the general public.
SECTION THREE
PROPOSAL PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS
3.1 GENERAL

To facilitate the timely evaluation of proposals, a standard format for proposal submission has been developed and is described in this section. All Applicants are required to format their proposals in a manner consistent with the guidelines described below:

· Each item must be addressed in the Applicant’s proposal. 

· The Transmittal Letter must be in the form of a letter. Proposals must be organized under the specific section titles as listed below.
3.2 TRANSMITTAL LETTER

The Transmittal Letter must address the following topics except those specifically identified as “optional.”


3.2.1
Agreement with Requirements listed in Section 1

The Applicant must explicitly acknowledge understanding of the general information presented in Section 1 and agreement with any requirements/conditions listed in Section 1.

The Applicant must explicitly acknowledge the ARRA requirements associated with the funding of this RFP.  Additionally, the Applicant must specifically address the requirements listed in Section 2. 

If additional information is found within the Applicant’s Proposal, beyond that described in the RFP, the location of any such additional information must be referenced in the Transmittal Letter.

3.2.2
Summary of Ability and Desire to Perform the Project

The Transmittal Letter must briefly summarize the Applicant’s ability to perform the Project that meets the requirements defined in Project Objectives (Section 1.7). The Transmittal Letter must also contain a statement indicating the Applicant’s willingness to perform the Project subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the RFP including, but not limited to, the ARRA and State mandatory requirements and the Loan Documents.

3.2.3 Conflicts of Interest

The Applicant must include a statement describing any potential conflicts of interest or absence thereof.

3.2.4   Signature of Authorized Representative

A person authorized to commit the Applicant to its representations and who can certify that the information offered in the proposal meets all terms and conditions of the RFP must sign the Transmittal Letter. In the Transmittal Letter, please indicate the principal contact for the proposal along with an address, telephone and fax number as well as an e-mail address of the principal contact. 

3.2.4 Applicant Notification 

Unless otherwise indicated in the Transmittal Letter, Applicants will be contacted via e-mail. 

It is the Applicant’s obligation to notify the IOED of any changes in any address that may have occurred since the origination of this RFP. The IOED is not responsible for incorrect Applicant contact information. 

3.2.5    Other Information

This item is optional. Any other information the Applicant may wish to briefly summarize will be acceptable.

3.3 BUSINESS PROPOSAL

The Business Proposal must address the following topics except those specifically identified as “optional.” If a section asks for an attachment, please indicate whether the attachment is included as part of your response, and where it can be found in the Business Proposal.


3.3.1
General (optional)

This section of the Business Proposal may be used to introduce or summarize any information the Applicant deems relevant or important to the State’s consideration of its proposal.


3.3.2
Applicant Company Structure

The legal form of the Applicant’s business organization, the state in which formed (accompanied by a certificate of authority), the types of business ventures in which the organization is involved, and an explanation and a chart of the organization and its affiliates are to be included in this section. 

3.3.3
Applicant Company Financial Information

The Applicant should submit as an attachment to its Proposal the following:

(i) Applicant’s financial statements, including an income statement, balance sheet and notes to financial statements, for each of the three (3) most recently completed fiscal years and year to date financials dated within 60 days of the date of Applicant’s Proposal. The financial statements must demonstrate the Applicant’s financial stability.  If the financial statements being provided by the Applicant are those of a parent or holding company, additional financial information should be provided for the entity/organization directly responding to this RFP.

(ii) Applicant’s forecasted balance sheets, income statements and cash flow statements for the next three (3) fiscal years, accompanied by a detailed explanation of the assumptions used in preparing the forecasts.  If the Project does not break-even within three (3) fiscal years, a break-even analysis for the Project should be included, along with similar financial information for any subsequent fiscal years until the Project becomes profitable.
(iii) Evidence of the Applicant’s ability to complete the Project and leverage SEP funding for additional public and private investments necessary to complete the Project, such as lender term sheets, investor commitment letters, or offers for incentives.

3.3.4 Integrity of Applicant Company Structure and Financial Reporting

This section must include a statement indicating that the CEO and/or CFO has taken personal responsibility for the thoroughness and correctness of any/all financial information supplied with this proposal.  This statement must also indicate the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Applicant and whether the statements are in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The particular areas of interest to the State in considering corporate responsibility include the following items: separation of audit functions from corporate boards and board members, if any, the manner in which the organization assures board integrity, and the separation of audit functions and consulting services.  The information offered in this section will be included among the information considered by the State to determine the responsibility of the Applicant under IC 5-22-16-1(d).


3.3.5
Experience Conducting Similar Projects
Each Applicant is asked to please describe its experience and performance with other federal and state programs and with manufacturing Renewable Energy Products.  The Applicant may highlight its management or principal’s experience if relevant to the Applicant’s ability to complete the Project.  If Applicant is partnering with other entities to complete the Project, Applicant may list those entities and describe their role in the Project.  The State also reserves the right to use the State’s past experience with Applicant as a reference. 


3.3.6
Registration to do Business

If awarded a loan agreement, the Applicant will be required to be registered, and be in good standing, with the Indiana Secretary of State.  The registration requirement is applicable to all limited liability partnerships, limited partnerships, corporations, S-corporations, and limited liability companies. The Applicant must indicate the status of registration, if applicable, in this section of the proposal.


3.3.7
Authorizing Document 

Applicant personnel signing the Transmittal Letter of the proposal must be legally authorized by the organization to commit the Applicant.  This section should contain proof of such authority. A copy of corporate bylaws or a corporate resolution adopted by the board of directors indicating this authority will fulfill this requirement.  If sufficient documentation is not submitted with the Proposal, IOED may require that such documentation be filed prior to an award.
3.4 TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

The technical proposal must consist of the completed Project Objectives form (Attachment C), a summary of the Project and where appropriate or advisable to support its Proposal, further detail on how the Applicant will achieve the Project Objectives set forth in Section 1.7.  Where appropriate, supporting documentation may be referenced.  However, when this is done, the body of the Project Objectives form and the technical proposal must contain a meaningful summary of the referenced material. The referenced document must be included as an appendix to the technical proposal with referenced sections clearly marked. If there are multiple references or multiple documents, these must be listed and organized for ease of use by the State.
Please also include in your technical proposal how you will comply with Section 5.1, Buy American Act requirements, where applicable.

3.5 INDIANA ECONOMIC IMPACT

Consistent with the requirements of ARRA, the IOED places a strong emphasis on the economic impact a project will have in furthering the production, availability, presence, use, and market acceptance of Renewable Energy Products in Indiana and the availability of new clean energy jobs for its residents. All Applicants must complete an “Indiana Economic Impact” form (Attachment D).  Additionally, Applicants should demonstrate that the Project will provide other benefits to the State of Indiana, such as providing opportunities for expansion of “supply-chain clustering” or otherwise establishing or enhancing the State of Indiana, as a leader in Renewable Energy Products.
SECTION FOUR
PROJECT EVALUATION

4.1 PROJECT SELECTION

Project evaluation and selection is guided by the criteria as established by the IOED, including the criteria listed below.

4.2 REVIEW CRITERIA

Proposals will be evaluated based upon the proven ability of the Applicant to satisfy the requirements of the RFP.  Each of the evaluation criteria categories is described below with a brief explanation of the basis for evaluation in that category. The points associated with each category are indicated following the category name (total maximum points = 100).  If any one or more of the listed criteria on which the responses to this RFP will be evaluated are found to be inconsistent or incompatible with applicable federal laws, regulations or policies, the specific criterion or criteria will be disregarded and the responses will be evaluated and scored without taking into account such criterion or criteria.

Summary of Evaluation Criteria:

	Criteria
	Points

	1.  NEPA Compliance
	Pass/Fail

	2.  Compliance with other RFP Requirements
	Pass/Fail

	3.  Project Objectives (Section 1.7)
	40 Points

	4.  Indiana Economic Impact
	30 Points

	5.  Funds Leveraged
	20 Points

	6.  Experience/Past Performance  (Section 3.3.5)
	10 Points

	Total
	100


Within each Criteria, Proposal information, including the following aspects, will be evaluated and ranked using the scoring criteria set forth above:

NEPA Compliance

· Proposals will be evaluated to determine whether or not the Project proposed meets the NEPA requirements, as set forth above in Section 2.3.  Any Proposal not meeting that requirement shall fail and not receive further consideration. 

RFP Compliance

· Any proposal which does not provide all required documentation, executed forms or other mandatory conditions for consideration under this RFP shall fail and not receive further consideration. 

Project Objective
· Each Proposal achieving the above Compliance criteria will be evaluated to consider the Applicant’s compliance with the Project Objective requirements set forth in Section 1.7. 
Indiana Economic Impact
Each Proposal achieving the above Compliance criteria will be evaluated to consider whether: 
· The Project will result in the creation of net new full-time employment positions for Indiana residents.

· The Project will provide skills training to employees of the Applicant.

· The Project will provide other economic benefits to the State of Indiana, such as the ability to attract other supply chain cluster participants that will create additional jobs and will further advance Renewable Energy Products in the marketplace.

· The Applicant has a demonstrated ability to create and retain jobs.

Leveraged Funding

Each Proposal achieving the above Compliance criteria shall be evaluated to consider whether: 

· The Applicant has the financial wherewithal to complete the Project and is willing to match any investment for which the Applicant seeks assistance in an amount greater than the 1 to 1 basis required under Section 1.5.

· The Applicant has secured high levels of financial or similar commitment from the local community where the Project will take place.

· The Applicant has successfully sought or is likely to receive state and federal incentives, with Projects securing higher levels of other incentive commitments, including but not limited to support from the United States Department of Energy, being more considered favorably.
· The Applicants that require or have raised a significant amount of capital for the Project relative to the size of the company will be considered more favorably provided that the Applicant demonstrates an ability to secure that funding.
4.3 PROJECT EVALUATION PROCEDURE

All evaluation personnel will use the evaluation criteria stated in Section 4.2, and from those evaluations, the  IOED will determine which proposals to submit to DOE for confirmation, and if confirmed, to award, based upon the best means of servicing the interests of the State’s SEP objectives.
The procedure for evaluating the proposals against the evaluation criteria will be as follows:

4.3.1
Each Proposal will be evaluated for adherence to requirements on a pass/fail basis. Proposals that are incomplete or otherwise do not conform to proposal submission requirements may be eliminated from consideration. 

4.3.2
Each Proposal will be evaluated on the basis of the categories included in Section 4.2.  A point score has been established for each category.

4.3.3
If the Technical portions of one or more Proposals are close to equal, greater weight may be given to Job Creation and Fund Leveraging.  

4.3.4
The qualifying Proposals determined to be the most advantageous to the State, taking into account all of the evaluation factors and the SEP objectives, will be selected for further action, which may include additional investigations regarding financial wherewithal or the affect of a reduced award, and/or confirmation of NEPA compliance.  If, however, IOED determines that no proposal is sufficiently advantageous to the State, the State may take whatever further action is deemed necessary to satisfy the SEP.  If, for any reason, a Proposal is selected and the Applicant is not able to close the resulting Loan within the DOE SEP appropriate timeframe, the IOED may cancel all further Loan negotiations and make an award to the next qualified Applicant or determine that no such alternate Proposal exists.  
SECTION FIVE
OTHER REQUIREMENTS UNDER ARRA

5.1
SECTION 1605, BUY AMERICAN

Under Section 1605 of the ARRA, no funds appropriated by the Act may be used for a public buildings/works project unless “all iron, steel and manufactured goods used are produced in the U.S.”

Exceptions are allowed for cases:

• where the head of the federal agency concerned determines adherence would be “inconsistent with the public interest”,

• where iron/steel/manufactures are not produced in the U.S. in sufficient and available quantities, or

• inclusion of U.S. products would increase overall project cost by 25%

Notice of a waiver of the ARRA Buy American requirements must be noticed and justified in the Federal Register.

5.2
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Activities carried out and results achieved with ARRA funds will be tracked carefully and reported clearly quantifiably.  Applicants will be responsible for submitting financial and management progress reports to the IOED. Reports will be due on a quarterly and annual basis and must meet the special reporting requirements set forth under ARRA.

The IOED will be responsible for submitting multiple reports to DOE on the SEP ARRA funds. Please be advised that companies in receipt of these funds must submit reports on projects to meet DOE requirements. Multiple reports that will be due are as follows:

· Special Status Report

· Financial Reporting

· ARRA Performance Progress Report

· Closeout Reports

Recipients of funding appropriated by the Act shall comply with requirements of applicable Federal, State and local laws, regulations, DOE policy and guidance.

SECTION SIX
ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS
ASSURANCE SIGNATURE

NOTE: Sign this form and include in the application.

SIGNATURE: By signing this assurances page, you certify that you agree to perform all actions and support all intentions in the Assurances section.

Applicant Name: _____________________________________________________

Program Name: _________________________________________________________

Name and Title of Authorized Representative: _______________________________

Signature: ______________________________________________________________

Date: __________________________________________________________________

CERTIFICATION SIGNATURE

NOTE: Sign this form and include in the application.

SIGNATURE: By signing this Certification page, you certify that you agree to perform all actions and support all intentions in the Certification sections of this application. The three Certifications are:

· Certification: Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters

· Certification: Drug-Free Workplace

· Certification: Lobbying Activities

Applicant Name: ________________________________________________________

Program Name: _________________________________________________________

Name and Title of Authorized Representative: ________________________________

Signature: ______________________________________________________________

Date: __________________________________________________________________

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

CERTIFICATIONS/ASSURANCES/REPRESENTATIONS

WITHOUT EPACT REPRESENTATION

Applicant:  ______________________________________________________________

Solicitation No.:  _________________________________________________________

The following certifications and assurances must be completed and submitted with each application for financial assistance. The name of the person responsible for making the certifications and assurances must be typed in the signature block on the forms.

Standard Form 424B, Assurances – Non-Construction Programs

DOE F 1600.5, Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs

Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; and Drug Free Workplace Requirements

Representation of Limited Rights Data and Restricted Computer Software

ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS

OMB Approval No. 0348-0040

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET, SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

Note:
Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant I certify that the applicant: (_________________________ Insert Name of Proposer):

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, and the institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management and completion of the project described in this application.

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, and if appropriate, the State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the award, and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives.

3. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.

4. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.

5. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards for merit systems for programs funded under one of the nineteen statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of O.P.M.'s Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).

6. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) The Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 33601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal assistance is being made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the application.

7. Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646), which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or federally assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.

8. Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

9. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §§874), and the Contract Work Hours an  Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for federally assisted construction subagreements. 

10. Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more.

11. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State Management Program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clear Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, (P.L. 93-523); and (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, (P.L. 93-205).

12. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers systems.

13. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. 469a-1 et seq).

14. Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in research, development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance.

15. Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. 2131 et seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or other activities supported by this award of assistance.

16. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.

17. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1996, or OMB Circular No. A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

18. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations and policies governing this program.

Printed Name and Title of

Authorized Representative:  _________________________________________________

________________________________________

________________________

SIGNATURE 






DATE

DOE F 1600.5


 U.S. Department of Energy

OMB Control No.

(06-94)



 Assurance of Compliance


1910-0400

Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs

OMB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1900-0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Paperwork Reduction Project (1900-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

_____________________________________________________(Hereinafter called the “Applicant”) HEREBY AGREES to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L.88-352), Section 16 of the Federal Energy Administration Act of 1974 (Pub.L.93-275), Section 401 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub.L.93-438), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (Pub.L.92-318, Pub.L.93-568, and Pub.L.94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub.L.93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub.L.94-135), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub.L.90-284), the Department of Energy Organization Act of 1977 (Pub.L.95-91), and the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended (Pub.L.94-385) and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the above laws and regulations issued pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which the Applicant receives Federal assistance from the Department of Energy.

Applicability and Period of Obligation

In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased, or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy, this assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy.

Employment Practices

Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance extended by the Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not limited to, recruitment advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay, training and participation in upward mobility programs;

or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Assurance

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply with laws cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance form, however, the obligation or both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Energy. Such information shall include, but is not limited to, the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related data necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age, and disability; (3) data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race, color, national origin, sex, age, and disability, in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to its obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities developed by the Applicant from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy, Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, building, or other structures) and all records, books, accounts, and other sources of information pertinent to the Applicant's compliance with the civil rights laws shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans, contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the date hereto, to the Applicants by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account after such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Applicant recognizes and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representation and agreements made in this assurance and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance. This assurance is binding on the Applicant, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the person(s) whose signature appears below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the Applicant.

Applicant Certification

The Applicant certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be furnished to the Applicant upon written request to DOE).

Designated Responsible Employee

___________________________________________
________________________ 

Name and Title (Printed to Typed) 



Telephone Number

___________________________________________
________________________

Signature 






Date

___________________________________________
________________________

Applicant’s Name 





Telephone Number

___________________________________________
________________________

Address






Date

Authorized Official:

President, Chief Executive Officer

or Authorized Designee

__________________________________________
________________________

Name and Title (Printed to Typed) 



Telephone Number

__________________________________________
________________________

Signature 






Date

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING;

DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS;

AND DRUG FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are required to attest.  Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form. Signature of this form provides for compliance with certification requirements under 10 CFR Part 601 "New Restrictions on Lobbying," 10 CFR Part 606 "Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement) and 10 CFR Part 607 “Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Grants)." The certifications shall be treated as a material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the Department of Energy determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

1. LOBBYING

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

2. ADDITIONAL LOBBYING REPRESENTATION

Applicant organizations which are described in section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and engage in lobbying activities after December 31, 1995, are not eligible for the receipt of Federal funds constituting an award, grant, or loan.

As set forth in section 3 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 as amended, (2 U.S.C. 1602), lobbying activities are defined broadly to include, among other thins, contacts on behalf of an organization with specified employees of the Executive Branch and Congress with regard to Federal legislative, regulatory, and program administrative matters.

Check the appropriate block:

The applicant is an organization described in section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?  ⁭Yes  ⁭ No

If you checked “Yes” above, check the appropriate block:

The applicant represents that after December 31, 1995 it ⁭ has ⁭ has not engaged in any lobbying activities as defined in the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, as amended.

3. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

This certification is required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub.L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D) and is implemented through additions to the Debarment and Suspension regulations, published in the Federal Register on January 31, 1989, and May

25, 1990.

ALTERNATE I (RECIPIENTS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

(1) The recipient certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the project be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under the loan, the employee will:

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statue occurring in the workplace not later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency, in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every loan officer or other designee on whose loan activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected loan; 

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug- free workplace through implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(2) The recipient may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the specific loan:

Place of Performance: (Street address, city, county, state, zip code)

⁭ Check if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

ALTERNATE II (RECIPIENTS WHO ARE INDIVIDUALS)

(1) The recipient certifies that, as a condition of the grant, he or she will not engage in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance in conducting any activity with the loan.

(2) If convicted of a criminal drug offense resulting from a violation occurring during the conduct of any loan activity, he or she will report the conviction, in writing, within 10 calendar days of the conviction, to every loan officer or other designee, unless the Federal agency designates a central point for the receipt of such notices. When notice is made to such a central point, it shall include the identification number(s) of each affected loan.

5. SIGNATURE

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I hereby certify that the applicant will comply with the above certifications.

Name of Applicant:  _______________________________________________________

Printed Name and Title of

Authorized Representative:  _________________________________________________

___________________________________________
________________________

SIGNATURE 






DATE

Representation of Limited Rights Data and Restricted Computer Software

(a) Any data delivered under an award resulting from this announcement is subject to the Rights in Data – General or the Rights in Data – Programs Covered under Special Data Statutes clause (See Intellectual Property Provisions at www.gc.doe.gov/gcmain.html). Under these clauses, the Recipient may withhold from delivery data that qualify as limited rights data or restricted computer software. As an aid in determining the Government’s need to include Alternate I and/or Alternate II in these clauses, which allow for delivery of limited rights data and/or restriction computer software, the applicant must complete paragraph (b) below to either state that none of the data involved in the proposed work effort qualify as limited rights data or restricted computer software, or identify, to the extent feasible, which of the data qualifies as limited rights data or restricted computer software. Any identification of limited rights data or restricted computer software in this application is not determinative of the status of such data should an award be made.

(b) The applicant has reviewed the proposed work effort and the requirements for the delivery of data or software and states:

⁭ None of the data proposed for fulfilling such requirements qualifies as limited rights data or restricted computer software.

⁭ Data proposed for fulfilling such requirements qualify as limited rights data or restricted computer software and are identified as follows:


________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

Note: “limited rights data” and “restricted computer software” are defined in provision “Rights in Data – General.”

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS

FOR LOAN APPLICANTS

EXISTING DEBT SCHEDULE:

The applicant is to provide a listing of all-outstanding loans or debt obligations (including all leases). The information will assist IOED in making a favorable decision on the Loan application. For any outstanding debts against the borrowing trust or authority, provide the following. Use additional paper if necessary.

For each loan, provide the following information:

1)  Lender Name

2)  Loan Origination Date

3)  Date of Last Renewal

4)  Original Loan Amount

5)  Current Balance

6)  Date Next Payment Due

7)  Date Last Payment Made

8)  Proceeds Used For

9)  Current Interest Rate

10)  Collateral

11)  Maturity Date

PENDING LITIGATION STATEMENT

The applicant is requested to provide a clear and concise narrative statement that no pending litigation exists that may preclude them from using the Loan/Lease funds in the manner prescribed in the Project Implementation Statement, nor in any way places the Loan/Lease proceeds in jeopardy, and thus subject to loss.

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

I certify that the above statement is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

_____________________________________________

Signature of Authorized Representative

_____________________________________________

Title of Authorized Representative

80270294
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ATTACHMENT A

SAMPLE LOAN DOCUMENTS

LOAN AGREEMENT

Office of the Lieutenant Governor

Indiana Office of Energy Development

101 West Ohio Street, Suite 1250

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

This Loan Agreement does not create a debt or a liability of the State of Indiana under the Constitution of the State, or a pledge of the faith or credit of the State.  It does not directly, indirectly, or contingently obligate the State to levy any tax for the payment or fulfillment of any of its terms.

THIS LOAN AGREEMENT (“Loan Agreement”) is made this __ day of __________, 2009 by and between the OFFICE OF THE LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR, INDIANA OFFICE OF ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (the “Lender”), and the Borrower (as defined in Exhibit A).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Lender, through its State Energy Plan (the “SEP”), submitted a detailed request for funding through the United States Department of Energy (the “DOE”) under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (the “Act”) to support energy efficiency and renewable energy projects in Indiana (the “SEP Funding”); and


WHEREAS, the DOE approved the Lender’s SEP and has awarded Lender SEP Funding; and


WHEREAS, the Lender, pursuant to the terms of Market 4 of the SEP, conducted a competitive bidding process through a Request for Proposals (the “RFP”); and


WHEREAS, in response to the RFP, the Borrower provided detailed information regarding the specific project (the “Project”) the Borrower will finance with proceeds provided under the Loan Agreement, including: (i) how the Project will support energy efficiency and renewable energy projects in Indiana; (ii) the Borrower’s matching capital investment; (iii) the creation of net new full-time employment positions for Indiana residents; and (iv) compliance with the SEP, including requirements imposed under the DOE’s National Environmental Policy Act requirements (the “Proposal”); and


WHEREAS, the Borrower, through its Proposal, has applied for a loan from the SEP Funding, to assist the Borrower in financing the cost of the Project at its Facility; and


WHEREAS, on ____________, the Lender approved a loan from the SEP Funding, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Loan Agreement; and


WHEREAS, the Lender’s commitment was made on the Borrower’s representations set forth in its Proposal, which include but are not limited to the Borrower’s commitments to (i) make the Matching Capital Investment; (ii) retain Borrower’s Base Year Employment and (iii) meet Borrower’s New Employment Commitment;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth in this Loan Agreement, and subject to the following terms and conditions, the Lender and the Borrower agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

ARTICLE I

AMOUNT AND TERMS OF THE LOAN

A. Loan Amount and Purpose

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Loan Agreement, the Lender agrees to make the Loan available to Borrower, to be used solely to assist the Borrower in the purchase or financing of technologies to provide for the rapid deployment of alternative and renewable energy by the Borrower at its Facility.  The Loan is being provided to the Borrower in exchange for, among other consideration, the completion of the Project.  The Loan will be evidenced by, and disbursed and subject to the conditions of, a Promissory Note (the “Promissory Note”), which Promissory Note shall be issued in substantially the same form as Attachment A hereto.  At closing, the Borrower will pay from the proceeds of the Loan the Lender’s application fee and the Lender’s attorney’s fees associated with completing the Loan, and any recording fees.
B. Loan Terms

The terms and conditions of the Loan are set forth herein and in the Promissory Note.  Terms not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in Exhibit A to this Loan Agreement, incorporated herein by reference.


C.
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act Funding


Funds supporting this Loan have been provided through the Act and are subject to the reporting and operational requirements of the Act.   The Lender makes no representations or guarantees about funding beyond the contract period as this is being funded with one time dollars from the Act.  

ARTICLE II

BORROWER’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES


To induce the Lender to enter into this Loan Agreement and to make the Loan, the Borrower represents and warrants to the Lender that:

The Borrower is a corporation duly organized and validly existing in good standing under _______ law.  Borrower’s principal place of business is located in the State of Indiana.  The Borrower affirms that it is an entity described in Title 23 of the Indiana Code, is properly registered with, and owes no outstanding reports to, the Indiana Secretary of State.

The Borrower has the full corporate power and authority to enter into this Loan Agreement, the Promissory Note, the Security Agreement (as defined in Article VI), the Guaranty, and any and all other certificates and documents executed and/or delivered in connection therewith (collectively, the “Loan Documents”) and to perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder.

By all required action, the person signing on behalf of the Borrower has been duly authorized to execute and deliver the Loan Documents.  The execution, delivery and performance of the Loan Documents, and the issuance of the Promissory Note and the Security Agreement by the Borrower are not in contravention of, will not result in or constitute a default under, or be in conflict with, the terms of any indenture, instrument, document, decree, order, judgment, statute, rule or governmental regulation applicable to the Borrower.

All information furnished by the Borrower to the Lender or any persons representing the Lender in the Borrower’s Proposal or otherwise in connection with this Loan Agreement is accurate and complete in all material respects as of this date.

The Borrower has not at any time failed to pay when due interest or principal on, and is not now in default of, any obligation or indebtedness of the Borrower.

The Loan to the Borrower is permitted under the Act and the SEP, and the Borrower expressly represents and warrants to the Lender that it is legally eligible to receive the Loan.  The Borrower expressly agrees to repay to the Lender the outstanding principal balance of and accrued interest on the Loan immediately upon a legal determination of ineligibility being made by any court of competent jurisdiction.

The Loan Documents constitute legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Borrower, enforceable against it in accordance with their respective terms.

No litigation or proceeding of any governmental authority or any other person, firm or corporation is presently pending or, to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened, which questions the validity of the Loan Documents or the transactions contemplated thereby or which might materially and adversely affect the Borrower’s operations, financial condition or ability to perform any of its obligations under the Loan Documents.

The Borrower has not received notice and has no reasonable grounds to believe that it is in violation of any laws or orders that in any manner adversely and materially affect the Borrower’s ability to perform its obligations under the Loan Documents.

No other approval, consent or authorization of any form is or will be required in connection with the execution and delivery by the Borrower of the Loan Documents or the borrowing evidenced thereby, except as indicated herein. 

The Borrower certifies, by entering into this Loan Agreement, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from entering into this Loan Agreement by any federal agency or by any department, agency or political subdivision of the State of Indiana.  The term “principal” for purposes of this Loan Agreement means an officer, director, or shareholder of the Borrower.  The Borrower certifies that it has verified the suspension and debarment status for it and its principals and acknowledges that it shall be solely responsible for any recoupments or penalties that might arise from non-compliance.  Borrower shall immediately notify the Lender if any of its principals become debarred or suspended, and shall consent, at the Lender’s request, to the termination of this Loan Agreement.

The Borrower represents that it currently meets the Base Year Employment of Full-Time Employees, and that it will meet or exceed the New Employment Commitment.  

The Borrower represents by entering into this Loan Agreement, that it will promptly refer to the Lender any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, contractor, subgrantee, subcontractor, or other person has submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act or has committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity or similar misconduct involving the funds dispersed under this Loan Agreement.

ARTICLE III

COVENANTS OF BORROWER

The Borrower affirmatively covenants and agrees that until payment in full of the Promissory Note and the full performance of Borrower’s other obligations under the Loan Documents (the “Term of the Loan”), unless otherwise consented to in writing by the Lender, that:

The Borrower shall use the Loan proceeds only for the purposes described in the SEP, Borrower’s Proposal, and the Loan Documents. 

The Borrower shall not convey an interest in, or incur any indebtedness against, the Collateral (as defined in Article VI) other than as provided for in Article VI of this Loan Agreement.  Borrower shall also provide Lender a first lien against the Collateral (as defined in Article VI) in accordance with Article VI prior to filing a Disbursement Request with the Lender.

The Lender may conduct an on-site monitoring review of the Project. Such monitoring review will document the following:

Whether Project activities are consistent with those set forth in the SEP, Borrower’s Proposal, and the Loan Documents.

A complete, detailed analysis of actual public and/or private funds expended to date on the Project.

A detailed listing of all eligible Project costs by project budget line item which are accrued yet unpaid, if any.

A written evaluation as to the Borrower’s timely progress in project management, financial management and control systems, procurement systems and methods, and performance relative to timely submission of Project reports.

Upon at least two (2) business days written notice, the Borrower shall promptly provide to the Lender (or its authorized designees), at no cost to the Lender, reasonable access to the Project site to perform inspections regarding the progress of the Project and to the Borrower's office and its books and records during normal business hours and upon at least two (2) business days written notice and shall permit the Lender (or its authorized designees) to examine, copy without charge, or take notes from any and all books, records, and other documents in the possession or control of the Borrower relating to the completion of the Project and the satisfaction of the obligations set forth in this Loan Agreement at all reasonable times during the term of this Loan Agreement and for a period of three (3) years after final payment for inspection by the Lender or its authorized designee.

During the Term of the Loan, the Borrower will voluntarily provide the Lender notice 60-days in advance of facility closings or mass layoffs in Indiana that will result in an employment loss for twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the Borrower’s Indiana workforce (a “WARN Notice”).  

On or before forty-five (45) days following the close of each calendar year during the Term of the Loan, the Borrower shall submit the following information to the Lender regarding the applicable calendar year:

(i) The Borrower shall submit the information requested by the Lender in its annual Certification Packet, a copy of which will be sent to the Borrower prior to December 31st of each calendar year;

(ii) The Borrower’s federal identification number and taxpayer account number as assigned by the Indiana Department of Workforce Development for the purpose of unemployment insurance, to assist in the verification of the provided information;

(iii) The number of Full-Time Employees (as defined in Indiana Code § 6–3.1–13–4) employed by the Borrower at the Project location;

(iv) The number of New Employees (as defined in Indiana Code § 6–3.1–13–6) employed by the Borrower at the Project location;

(v) The average wage of New Employees employed by the Borrower;

(vi) The total payroll amount and each annual salary (not to include non-taxable fringe benefits) paid to Full-Time Employees employed by the Borrower at the Project location during the calendar year, listed by employee name, the last four (4) digits of the employee’s social security number, mailing address, hire date, termination date (if applicable), together with designation of whether termination was voluntary or involuntary (if readily available); 

(vii) The state income tax withholding paid to the Indiana Department of Revenue for each employee at the Project location during the calendar year; and

(viii) Any other information reasonably requested by the Lender to certify the Borrower’s compliance with the terms of this Loan Agreement.

The above information submitted to the Lender must be certified as true and correct by an officer of the Borrower to the best of his or her knowledge.  The Lender shall review the information submitted by the Borrower and is authorized to verify the information with the appropriate governmental agencies.  
The Borrower shall maintain operations at the Project location and shall keep all improvements or property acquired or leased using Loan proceeds at the Project location until such time as the balance of the Loan, plus all other interest and charges due and owing under the Loan Agreement, is fully repaid by Borrower to Lender.

The Borrower shall promptly give the Lender written notice of:  (i) any Event of Default by Borrower, as defined below, together with a written statement of the action being taken by the Borrower to remedy such Event of Default; (ii) any litigation or proceeding before any court or governmental authority which, if adversely determined, might materially and adversely affect the Borrower's operations, financial condition or ability to perform any of its obligations under the Loan Documents; or (iii) any changes, amendments, or modifications to existing contracts, or agreements that materially and adversely affect the Borrower's operations, financial conditions or ability to perform any of its obligations under this Loan Agreement.

The Borrower shall, upon reasonable request of the Lender, duly execute and deliver to the Lender such further instruments and do and cause to be done such further acts as may be necessary or proper in the reasonable opinion of the Lender to carry out more effectively the provisions and purposes of this Loan Agreement

Compliance with Laws:
The Borrower shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, and all provisions required thereby to be included herein are hereby incorporated by reference.  The Borrower’s acknowledgements, certifications, representations, warranties and agreements set forth in the Loan Documents shall in no way limit the generality of the foregoing.  The enactment or modification of any applicable state or federal statute or the promulgation of rules or regulations hereunder after execution of this Loan Agreement shall be reviewed by the Lender and the Borrower to determine whether the provisions of this Loan Agreement require formal modification.

The Borrower and its agents shall abide by all ethical requirements that apply to persons who have a business relationship with the Lender, as set forth in Indiana Code §4–2–6 et seq., Indiana Code §4–2–7 et seq., the regulations promulgated thereunder, Executive Order 04-08, dated April 27, 2004, Executive Order 05-12, dated January 10, 2005, and 25 Indiana Administrative Code 6, effective January 1, 2006.  If the Borrower, or any of its agents, are not familiar with these ethical requirements, they should refer any questions to the State Ethics Commission, or visit the State Ethics Commission website at http://www.in.gov/ethics/.  If the Borrower or any of its agents violate any applicable ethical standards, the Lender may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Loan Agreement immediately upon notice to the Borrower.  In addition, the Borrower may be subject to penalties under Indiana Code §§ 4–2–6, 4–2–7, 35–44–1–3, and under any other applicable laws.

The Borrower certifies by entering into this Loan Agreement that it is not presently in arrears in payment of its taxes, permit fees or other statutory, regulatory or judicially required payments to the State of Indiana.  Further, the Borrower agrees that any payments in arrears and currently due to the State of Indiana may be withheld from payments due to the Borrower.  Additionally, the Borrower acknowledges that the Lender may, in addition to exercising its other remedies, withhold, delay, or deny Disbursement Requests (as defined in the Promissory Note) until the Borrower is current in its payments and has submitted proof of such payment to the Lender.

The Borrower warrants that it has no current or outstanding criminal, civil, or enforcement actions initiated by the State of Indiana pending and agrees that it will immediately notify the Lender of any such actions.  If such an action may arise, the Borrower agrees that the Lender may, in addition to exercising its other remedies, delay, withhold, or deny Disbursement Requests under this Loan Agreement and the Promissory Note.

The Borrower warrants that the Borrower shall obtain and maintain all required material permits, licenses, and approvals, as well as comply with all material health, safety, and environmental statutes, rules, or regulations for its operations as may be required by any federal, state, local, or other governing and/or regulating body.  Failure to do so may be deemed a material breach of this Loan Agreement and grounds for immediate termination and denial of further rights to contract with the Lender.

The Borrower agrees that the Lender may confirm, at any time, that no liabilities exist to the Lender (other than any obligation under the Promissory Note), and, if such liabilities are discovered, that Lender may bar the Borrower from contracting with the Lender and the State of Indiana in the future, cancel existing contracts, withhold payments to setoff such obligations, and withhold further payments or purchases until the Borrower is current in its payments on its liability to the Lender and has submitted proof of such payment to the Lender.

As required by Indiana Code § 5–22–3–7:  

The Borrower, and its principals, certify that (1) the Borrower, except for de minimis and nonsystematic violations, has not violated the terms of (A) Indiana Code § 24–4.7 [Telephone Solicitation Of Consumers], (B) Indiana Code § 24–5–12 [Telephone Solicitations], or (B) Indiana Code § 24–5–14 [Regulation of Automatic Dialing Machines] in the previous 365 days, even if Indiana Code § 24–4.7 is preempted by federal law; and (2) the Borrower will not violate the terms of Indiana Code § 24–4.7 for the duration of this Loan Agreement, even if Indiana Code § 24–4.7 is preempted by federal law.

The Borrower certifies that, except for de minimis and nonsystematic violations, neither it nor any of its affiliates or principals and agents have violated in the previous 365 days, or will violate for the duration of this Loan Agreement, the terms of Indiana Code § 24–4.7, even if Indiana Code § 24–4.7 is preempted by federal law.

Drug-Free Workplace Certification:

The Borrower hereby covenants and agrees to make a good faith effort to provide and maintain a drug-free workplace.  Borrower will give written notice to the Lender within ten (10) days after receiving actual notice that the Borrower or an employee of the Borrower has been convicted of a criminal drug violation occurring in Borrower's workplace.

False certification or violation of the certification may result in sanctions including, but not limited to, suspension of loan payments, termination of the Loan and/or debarment of loan and contract opportunities with the Lender for up to three (3) years.

In addition to the provisions of the above paragraphs, if the total amount set forth in this Loan Agreement is in excess of $25,000.00, Borrower hereby further agrees that this Loan Agreement is expressly subject to the terms, conditions and representations of the following Certification:

This certification is required by Executive Order No. 90-5, April 12, 1990, issued by the Governor of Indiana.  Pursuant to its delegated authority, the Indiana Department of Administration is requiring the inclusion of this certification in all loans with and loans from the Lender in excess of $25,000.00.  No loan, the total amount of which exceeds $25,000.00, shall be made or be valid unless and until this certification has been fully executed by the Borrower and made a part of the Loan or Loan Agreement.  

The Borrower certifies and agrees that it will provide a drug-free workplace by:

Publishing and providing to all of its employees a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Borrower's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition; 

Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform its employees of (a) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; (b) the Borrower's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; (c) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and (d) the penalties that may be imposed upon an employee for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace; 

Notifying all employees in the statement required by subparagraph (i) above that as a condition of continued employment the employee will (a) abide by the terms of the statement; and (b) notify the Borrower in writing of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) calendar days after such conviction;

Notifying in writing the Lender within ten (10) calendar days after receiving notice from an employee under subdivision (iii)(b) above or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.  Notification must include the loan identifier number for each affected loan;

Within thirty (30) days after receiving notice under subdivision (iii)(b) above of a conviction, imposing the following sanctions or remedial measures on any employee who is convicted of drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace: (1) take appropriate personnel action against the employee, up to and including termination; or (2) require such employee to satisfactorily participate in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through the implementation of subparagraphs (i) through (v) above.  

Discrimination Prohibited:  

Pursuant to the Indiana Civil Rights Law, specifically including Indiana Code § 22–9–1–10, and in keeping with the purposes of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Borrower shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment, to be employed in the performance of this Loan Agreement, with respect to the employee's or applicant's hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of employment or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of the employee's or applicant's age, race, color, religion, sex, disability, status as a veteran, national origin or ancestry (“Protected Characteristics”).    Furthermore, Borrower certifies compliance with applicable federal laws, regulations, and executive orders prohibiting discrimination based on the Protected Characteristics in the provision of services. Breach of one or both of these covenants may be regarded as a material breach of this Loan Agreement.

The Borrower understands that the State of Indiana is a recipient of federal funds, and therefore, where applicable, Borrower agrees to comply with requisite affirmative action requirements, including reporting, pursuant to 41 CFR Chapter 60, as amended, and Section 202 of Executive Order 11246.

The Borrower shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Lender and the State of Indiana and their respective agents, officers, employees and representatives from all claims and suits for damages or loss or damage to property, including the loss of use thereof, and injuries to or death of persons, including without limitation any officers, agents, employees and representatives of Borrower or its contractors, and from all judgments recovered therefor and for expenses in defending any such claims or suits, including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and for any other expenses caused by an act or omission of Borrower or its grantees, contractors, agents, officers or employees in connection with performance of this Loan Agreement or in the operation of the Project.  Lender shall not provide such indemnity to the Borrower.

Within one hundred twenty (120) days after the Borrower’s fiscal year end, the Borrower shall provide the Lender with Borrower’s audited financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; provided, however, that upon Borrower’s written request, Lender may in Lender’s sole discretion, agree to accept reviewed or compiled financial statements in lieu of audited financial statements.  
The Borrower shall comply with all record keeping and reporting requirements under the Act, and shall cooperate with any audit by any appropriate federal or State of Indiana authorities related to the SEP Funding.   
ARTICLE IV

CONVENANTS OF THE LENDER

Subject to Borrower’s fulfillment of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Lender will:  (A) provide and disburse the Loan to the Borrower upon the submission of Disbursement Requests in accordance with the Loan Documents; (B) receive payments of principal and interest on the Loan from the Borrower as set forth in the Loan Documents; and (C) maintain records of all disbursements of Loan proceeds to the Borrower and payments received from Borrower. 

ARTICLE V

CLOSING DELIVERIES, CONDITIONS TO LENDING

& LOAN DISBURSEMENTS

Closing Deliveries.  The Borrower agrees to furnish to the Lender, prior to the initial borrowing under this Loan Agreement, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Lender:

the Loan Agreement, the Promissory Note and the Security Agreement, duly executed by Borrower;

copies of the Articles of Incorporation and By-laws of the Borrower;

copies of resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Borrower evidencing approval of the borrowings and transactions contemplated hereunder; 

a certificate of good standing (as applicable) from the state of formation of the Borrower and a certificate of authority from the Indiana Secretary of State’s Office, both dated no more than ten (10) days prior to the date hereof;

an Officers’ Certificate, dated the date hereof, certifying that the conditions specified in Sections B(i) and B(ii) have been fulfilled to the best of such officer’s knowledge; 

such other documents and instruments as the Lender may reasonably require; and

a certificate of business personal property insurance naming the State of Indiana as a loss payee in an amount sufficient to protect the Collateral, as defined in Article VI.

Initial Conditions.  In addition to providing to the Lender the closing deliveries required by Section A of this Article in a form satisfactory to the Lender, the Lender’s obligations to commit to make the Loan hereunder on the date hereof, and to make disbursement on the Loan hereafter, are subject to the fulfillment to the Lender’s reasonable satisfaction of the following conditions:

Representations and Warranties.  

The representations and warranties of the Borrower in each of the Loan Documents shall be true and correct when made and at the time of each disbursement of the Loan.  

Performance; No Default.  

The Borrower shall have performed and complied with all agreements and conditions in each of the Loan Documents required to be performed or complied with by it prior to or at the time of the Loan and, after giving effect to the Loan (and the application of the proceeds thereof as provided herein), no Default or Event of Default (as defined below) shall have occurred and be continuing.

Proceedings and Documents.

A copy of any other documents and instruments required to be executed in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Loan Agreement shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Lender, and the Lender and its counsel shall have received all such counterpart originals or certified or other copies of such documents as the Lender may reasonably request.

Disbursement Request.  

To receive a Disbursement (as defined in the Promissory Note) under the Promissory Note, the Borrower must execute and deliver to the Lender a Disbursement Request (as defined in the Promissory Note) along with accompanying documentation evidencing the payment of eligible expenses incurred for the Project.  Upon the receipt of a valid Disbursement Request and the fulfillment of the conditions set forth in this Loan Agreement, the Lender will process the Disbursement Request to reimburse the Borrower for the eligible expenditures. The Disbursement Request must certify that the representations set forth in the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents remain true and correct and that the Borrower has abided by the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in the Loan Agreement and other Loan Documents.

Project Status

Prior to receiving a Disbursement, the Borrower shall provide the Lender evidence, to the Lender’s satisfaction, that the Borrower (i) has the financial wherewithal to complete the Project, and (ii) is progressing toward the Project’s completion in accordance with the project description set forth in the Borrower’s application for this Loan. 

Continuing Fulfillment of Other Conditions.

As of the date of such request and the date of such disbursement, the conditions specified in Section B of this Article V shall continue to be fulfilled.  After giving effect to such disbursement (and the application of the proceeds thereof) no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing.

Fulfilling State Conditions.

The Borrower understands and agrees that if the Director of the Indiana State Budget Agency makes a written determination that funds are not appropriated or otherwise available to support continuation of the Loan the Borrower is entitled to no further disbursements under this Loan Agreement.  A determination by the Budget Director that funds are not appropriated or otherwise available to support continuation of performance shall be final and conclusive.
ARTICLE VI

SECURITY AGREEMENT

In conjunction with the issuance of the Promissory Note under this Loan Agreement, Borrower shall provide a first lien on all the personal property (the “Collateral”) more particularly described in the form of security agreement attached hereto as Attachment B (the “Security Agreement”).  The security interest and lien shall be granted in the form set forth in the Security Agreement and shall secure the payment of the Loan evidenced by the Promissory Note. The Security Agreement shall also secure the payment of any and all future advances that may be made by the Lender to the Borrower during the term of the Loan Agreement, equally with and to the same extent as the moneys initially disbursed under the Loan Agreement.

The Borrower represents, warrants, and agrees that:

The Borrower controls the Collateral free of all liens and encumbrances.  Borrower agrees to keep the Collateral free from any other lien, security interest or encumbrance that would be adverse to the Loan Documents.

No mortgage, financing statement or encumbrance, recorded or otherwise, that would be adverse to this Loan Agreement covering all or any portion of the Collateral exists.

The Borrower authorizes the Lender at the expense of Borrower to record the Security Agreement and if necessary execute and file on its behalf a financing statement or statements in those public offices deemed necessary by the Lender to protect its interest in the Collateral.

The Borrower will not sell or offer to sell or otherwise transfer, encumber or assign the Collateral or any interest therein except as permitted under the Security Agreement or without the prior written consent of the Lender, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

If an Event of Default occurs, the Promissory Note and other liabilities may at the option of the Lender and without notice or demand become immediately due and payable and the Lender may exercise from time to time any rights and remedies of a secured party under the Security Agreement or other applicable law or of a secured party under the Uniform Commercial Code or other applicable law.  The Borrower agrees in the Event of Default to make the Collateral available to the Lender at the Project location.  If any notification or disposition of all or any portion of the Collateral is required by law, such notification shall be deemed reasonable and properly given if mailed at least ten (10) days prior to such disposition, postage prepaid to the Borrower at the address appearing in this Loan Agreement.


The Borrower has not, and will not as long as the Borrower’s obligations under this Loan Agreement or the Promissory Note remain outstanding, enter into any material agreement that provides that the Borrower’s proper payment of the Borrower’s obligations under the Promissory Note shall act as an event of default, or is otherwise prohibited, under said agreement.


Notwithstanding any provision of the Loan Documents to the contrary, the Lender’s obligations under the Loan Documents shall not become effective until Guarantor has executed the Guaranty, in the form attached hereto as Attachment C, of the Obligations, as that term is defined in the Guaranty, owed by Borrower to Lender.  Upon execution the Guaranty shall be attached to this Loan Agreement.

ARTICLE VII

EVENTS OF DEFAULT BY BORROWER

Each of the following constitutes a separate event of default (“Event of Default”) by the Borrower:

The Borrower, its parent company or shareholders, or any affiliate or related entity or partnership determines to, or otherwise effects, the location of operations of the Borrower outside the State of Indiana. 

The Borrower fails to employ a number of Full-Time Employees that equals or exceeds the Base Year Employment for more than sixty (60) days.

Borrower fails to pay the full amount of principal and interest that is due under the terms of the Promissory Note within ten (10) days of that payment’s due date. 

Borrower does not pay principal and interest on any other indebtedness or borrowed money in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($50,000.00) when due, and the holder of such obligation declares such obligation due prior to its date of maturity because of default.   However, the Lender may excuse this event if the Borrower contests the declaration of default by appropriate legal proceedings and demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Lender its likelihood of success.  The Lender may also excuse the event if the Borrower has furnished bond or surety with regard to the proceedings which the Lender determines is satisfactory. 

Any representation or warranty made by the Borrower in Article II, or otherwise furnished in writing in connection with the Loan Documents, is found to be false in any material respect. 

Borrower violates any one or more affirmative covenants contained in Article III to be performed by the Borrower and such violations have not been remedied within ten (10) days of the date that written notice of the violation was delivered to the Borrower from the Lender.  

Any judgment is rendered against the Borrower in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($50,000.00) that is not satisfied within thirty (30) days after the time limits available for all appeals of that judgment have expired.   The Lender may excuse the event if the Borrower has furnished bond or surety with regard to the proceedings, which the Lender determines is satisfactory.

The Borrower makes an assignment, conveyance or surrender of the Project facilities assisted with this Loan for the benefit of creditors. 

The Borrower applies to any court for the appointment of a trustee or receiver of any substantial part of the assets of the same or commences any proceedings relating to any of the same under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution, or other liquidation law of any jurisdiction. 

Any application is filed or proceedings are commenced as described in subparagraph (I) above against the Borrower and the Borrower indicates its approval, consent or acquiescence, or an order is entered appointing a trustee or receiver or adjudication of any of the same as a bankrupt or an insolvent or approving the petition in any such proceedings and such proceedings are not dismissed within sixty (60) days after the filling or commencement of such proceedings. 

Any order is entered in any proceedings against the Borrower to create a dissolution or split up of the Borrower, unless Borrower is attempting to appeal the same.

The Borrower makes a sale, assignment or encumbrance of all or any portion of the Collateral, or makes any levy, seizure or attachment thereof or thereon, other than an assignment, conveyance or encumbrance permitted under the Security Agreement or approved by the Lender under Article VI.

Dissolution, merger, consolidation, or transfer of a substantial portion of the property of the Borrower occurs, unless to an entity controlled by, or in common control with, Borrower.

The Borrower or one of its principals is debarred or suspended by a federal agency or by a department, agency or a political subdivision of the State of Indiana.

Any guarantor of the Promissory Note or this Loan Agreement materially breaches any of the guarantor’s obligations under its guaranty.

The Borrower Fails to comply with the terms, conditions and requirements of the Act.
No excuse of an Event of Default under subparagraph (D) or (G) is effective unless such excuse is confirmed in writing by Lender.  

ARTICLE VIII

REMEDIES

If any Event of Default occurs under Article VII above and is not expressly waived or excused by the Lender in writing, the Lender shall not have any further obligation to disburse Loan funds hereunder until the Event of Default has been cured, and all amounts payable under the Promissory Note, including penalty, if any, may at the Lender’s option immediately become due and payable with no need for presentment, demand protest or further notice.

In addition to the foregoing, the Lender may exercise any rights and remedies available under law to remedy an Event of Default or collect such amounts due, including but not limited to pursuing its rights and remedies under the Security Agreement, this Agreement any other Loan Document, or the Uniform Commercial Code.

To the extent that the Collateral includes personal property, the Borrower agrees in the Event of Default to make the Collateral available to the Lender at a place acceptable to the Lender, which is convenient to both parties.  If any notification or disposition of all or any portion of the Collateral is required by law, such notification shall be deemed reasonable and properly given if mailed at least ten (10) days prior to such disposition, postage prepaid to the Borrower at the address appearing in this Agreement.

The Borrower agrees to pay all reasonable costs of collection incurred by Lender in case an Event of Default occurs under this Loan Agreement. Said costs shall include, without limitation, all reasonable expenses, court costs and attorney fees, whether involving the Office of the Attorney General or a private attorney.

ARTICLE IX

GENERAL PROVISIONS

This Loan Agreement and all other Loan Documents and all other matters relating to the transaction covered herein shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana and any suit related to this Loan Agreement, any other Loan Document or other matters related to the transaction covered herein must be brought in Indiana and the Borrower consents to personal jurisdiction in the State of Indiana.

All representations, warranties, covenants and agreements made in the Loan Documents survive throughout the entire Term of the Loan.

Borrower releases the Lender from any liability for any act or omission relating to or arising out of the Loan, except for the Lender's breach of any of its obligations under the Loan Documents.  The Borrower further agrees that any liability of the Lender resulting from the Loan Documents is hereby expressly limited to the amount of undisbursed proceeds of the Loan and that such limitation is fair and reasonable in light of the circumstances surrounding this Loan and the issuance thereof.  Proceeds of the Loan may only be used for the uses set forth in the SEP, Borrower’s Proposal, and the Loan Documents and may not be used to satisfy any other obligation of the Borrower. 

No delay on the part of the Lender in the exercise of any power or right shall operate as a waiver of that power or right.  A single or partial exercise of any power does not preclude the further exercise of that power or right or the exercise of any other power or right. All rights and remedies existing under the Loan Documents shall be cumulative and in addition to those other rights which may be provided by law.

The Loan Documents merge and supersede all prior negotiations, representations, and agreements of any kind between the Borrower and Lender relating in any manner to the Loan, and constitute the entire agreement between the Borrower and Lender concerning the Loan.

Any inconsistency or ambiguity in this Loan Agreement shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order: (1) This Loan Agreement, (2) Attachments prepared by the Lender, (3) Attachments prepared by the Borrower, (4) the RFP; and (5) the Proposal.

This Loan Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the Lender, its successors and assigns, and except as otherwise expressly provided, to all subsequent holders of the Promissory Note.  Since the Lender has entered into the Loan in reliance upon the Borrower and its application for the Loan, the Borrower may not assign or transfer its rights and obligations hereunder without the written consent of the Lender.

If any provision of this Loan Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable under any law, such provision will be deemed to be severable from the remaining provisions, and waived, and will in no way affect the validity of such remaining provisions.

Nothing in this Loan Agreement, whether express or implied, shall be construed to give to any person other than the Borrower and the Lender any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect of this Loan Agreement or the other Loan Documents which are intended for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Borrower and the Lender.

All notices and correspondence pursuant to this Loan Agreement shall be delivered to the parties hereto as follows:

Notices to the Borrower shall be sent to:


_______________.

Attn: Chief Executive Officer

_____________________

_________, Indiana ______

Notices to the Lender shall be sent to:


Indiana Office of Energy Development

Attn:  General Counsel
101 West Ohio Street, Suite 1250

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

With a copy to:

Matt Tuohy

Loan Officer

One North Capitol Avenue, Suite 900

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

The Recitals and all of the Attachments and Exhibits to this Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents are specifically incorporated by reference into and made a part of this Loan Agreement.

This Loan Agreement may not be changed, amended or modified orally. Any change, amendment, or modification must be in writing and signed by the parties hereto, and approved in the same manner as for this Loan Agreement.  

To the extent feasible and permissible by law, the Lender will honor the Borrower’s request that confidential information submitted to the Lender remain confidential.  The Lender will treat the information as confidential only if: (i) the information is in fact protected confidential information, such as trade secrets or privileged or confidential commercial or financial information, (ii) the information is specifically marked and identified as confidential by the disclosing party, (iii) the information is segregated from other material submitted, and (iv) no disclosure of the information is required by applicable law or judicial order, as determined by the Lender in its sole discretion.

All Loan disbursements shall be made in accordance with State fiscal policies and procedures and, as required by Indiana Code § 4–13–2–14.8, by electronic funds transfer to the financial institution designated by the Borrower in writing unless a specific waiver has been obtained from the Auditor of the State, notwithstanding any other law, rule, custom or provision to the contrary.  The written authorization must designate a financial institution and an account number to which all payments are to be credited.  Payments shall be deemed delivered upon being transmitted pursuant to the written instructions of the Borrower.

The undersigned individual signing as Borrower attests, subject to the penalties for perjury that he/she is the properly authorized agent, member, officer or representative of the Borrower, that he/she has not, nor has any other agent, member, officer, representative, or employee of the Borrower, directly or indirectly, to the best of his/her knowledge, entered into or offered to enter into any combination, collusion or agreement to receive or pay, and that he/she has not received or paid, any sum of money or other consideration for the execution of this Loan Agreement or the other Loan Documents other than that which appears on the face hereof or in the Promissory Note and Security Agreement.

The undersigned swears or affirms under the penalties of perjury that the State’s Boilerplate contract clauses have not been altered, modified or changed after approval by the Indiana Attorney General’s Office on August __, 2009.

[Signature Page Follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Loan Agreement, having read and understood the foregoing terms of the Loan Agreement, hereby do, by their respective authorized representatives, agree to the terms thereof.

“Borrower”
“Lender”

________________________________
OFFICE OF THE LIEUTENANT 
GOVERNOR, INDIANA OFFICE OF ENERGY 
DEVELOPMENT 

By: 







, for



Rebecca S. Skillman, Lieutenant Governor

Printed: 

 
Title: 



Date: 

Date: 







DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION







, for

Mark W. Everson, Commissioner


Date: 






STATE BUDGET AGENCY







, for

Christopher A. Ruhl

Date: 






APPROVED as to Form and Legality:

Office of the Attorney General







, for

Gregory F. Zoeller, Attorney General

Date: 






EXHIBIT A
DEFINITIONS
“Base Year Employment” means 

, which is the aggregate number of Indiana resident Full-Time Employees (as defined in Indiana Code § 6–3.1–13–4) directly employed by the Borrower at the Project location as of the date of this Loan Agreement, earning an average hourly wage of approximately $___________.

“Borrower” means ______________________, a/an ____________________, organized and existing under the laws of the State of _________________.

“Facility” means Borrower’s facility, located at _____________________, Indiana, at which the Project will be implemented.

“Guarantor” means ________________, who shall be required to execute the Guaranty, attached as Attachment C to the Loan Agreement, guarantying the Borrower’s Obligations (as defined in the Guaranty) to Lender.

“Loan” means the loan approved by Lender upon application by Borrower, funded from the SEP Funding, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Loan Agreement, in the maximum aggregate Principal amount of ___________________.

“Matching Capital Investment” means $____________, the amount contributed to the Project at the Facility by Borrower, exclusive of the Loan.

“New Employment Commitment” means that on or before ___________, 20__, and for the duration of the period thereafter during which there exists any amounts owing from Borrower to Lender under this Loan Agreement, Borrower shall employ a minimum of ________ Indiana resident Full-Time Employees (as defined in Indiana Code § 6–3.1–13–4) at the Project location, earning an average hourly wage of at least $_______.

ATTACHMENT A

PROMISSORY NOTE

Not to Exceed $__________
Due: [To be determined.]

[Note: Date of maturity will depend on type of equipment purchased and its useful life.]

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, _______________________. (the “Borrower”), hereby promises to pay to the order of the OFFICE OF THE LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR, INDIANA OFFICE OF ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (the “Lender”), the principal sum of ___________________ and 00/100 Dollars ($___________.00) or such lesser amount that may be disbursed to Borrower under the Loan Agreement (as defined below) and interest on the Unpaid Principal Balance (as defined below) at the rate of interest stated herein, subject to the terms and conditions as provided herein.

1. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere herein and in the Loan Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

A. 
“Accrued Interest” shall mean the interest calculated on the Unpaid Principal Balance at the Applicable Rate.  

B.
“Applicable Rate” shall mean two and one half percent (2.5%) per annum; provided, however, that during any period of time that Borrower is in non-compliance with the New Employment Commitment, as defined in the Loan Agreement, interest shall accrue at the rate of eight percent (8%) per annum.  Notwithstanding the foregoing if an Event of Default, as defined in the Loan Agreement, occurs, or after maturity whether by acceleration or otherwise, interest shall thereafter accrue at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum.  

C. 
“Aggregate Employment Commitment” shall mean the Base Year Employment plus the New Employment Commitment as such terms are defined in the Loan Agreement.

D.
“Capital Investment Commitment” shall mean the Borrower’s commitment to invest at least $_____________ at the Project location by _____________, satisfaction of which shall be determined by the Lender pursuant to the certification information submitted by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement.

E.
“Full-Time Employees” shall mean for purposes of Section 3 hereof Full-Time Employees as calculated and determined under the Loan Agreement and this Promissory Note by the Lender.

F.
“Loan” shall mean the loan from the Lender to the Borrower contemplated by the Loan Agreement and evidenced by this Promissory Note and the other Loan Documents.

G. 
“Loan Agreement” shall mean the Loan Agreement entered into by the Borrower and Lender concerning the Loan.

H.
“Security Agreement” shall mean the Security Agreement issued by the Borrower in favor of the Lender securing the Borrower’s obligations under this Promissory Note and the Loan Agreement.

I.
“Promissory Note” shall mean this Promissory Note.

J.
“Unpaid Principal Balance” shall mean all amounts disbursed under the terms of the Loan Agreement, plus all other charges due and owing to the Lender under the Loan Agreement (including interest).

Terms not defined in this Section 1 or otherwise in this Promissory Note shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Loan Agreement.

2. This Promissory Note is the promissory note referred to in the Loan Agreement and is subject to the terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement. This Promissory Note is entitled to the benefits of the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement contains provisions, among others, for the acceleration of the maturity of this Promissory Note upon the happening of certain stated events. The indebtedness evidenced hereby shall be disbursed to Borrower in accordance with this Section 2.  Subject to the fulfillment of the conditions set forth in the Loan Agreement, the Lender agrees to make disbursements to the Borrower (each, a “Disbursement” and collectively, the “Disbursements”) from time to time from the effective date hereof until [


].  The aggregate amount of all Disbursements hereunder shall not exceed an aggregate principal amount of _______________ and 00/100 Dollars ($___________.00).  For the avoidance of doubt, each Disbursement hereunder shall reduce the amount available for future Disbursements without regard to whether any Unpaid Principal Balance is repaid hereunder. Each Disbursement shall be in the minimum amount of [



].   Requests for Disbursements under this Section 2 of this Promissory Note shall be made by the Borrower and shall be delivered to Lender at the address set forth in the Loan Agreement in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto (each, a “Disbursement Request”).  Each Disbursement Request shall specify the eligible expenses of the Project for which the Borrower desires to be reimbursed.  Each Disbursement Request shall contain any and all documentation required to be provided in the Loan Agreement.

3. During the term of the Loan, Borrower shall pay principal and interest on the Promissory Note as follows:

A. Except as set forth in subsection C, as long as there remains outstanding any Unpaid Principal Balance or Accrued Interest, Borrower shall make regular quarterly payments of $_____ plus any and all Accrued Interest no later than January 15, April 15, July 15, and October 15 of each year (each a “Payment Date”).

B. Accrued Interest shall be calculated from the date of disbursement of Loan proceeds hereunder until the applicable Payment Date based upon a 360-day year.

C. [Additional terms of repayment, including deferral of principal repayment for up to two years, may be included in the final loan agreement between the Lender and Borrower.]

4. At the end of a calendar year (each a “Certification Date”), Lender will calculate, determine and verify the number of Full-Time Employees employed by the Borrower at the Project location based upon the evidence submitted by the Borrower for the applicable year under Article III of the Loan Agreement.  

5. Except as set forth in Paragraph 3 above, the obligations of the Borrower to make the installment payments of Unpaid Principal Balance and Accrued Interest required hereunder shall be absolute and unconditional without any defense or right of setoff, counterclaim, or recoupment out of any indebtedness or liability at any time owing to Borrower by Lender or for any other reason.

6. Borrower hereby waives diligence, demand for payment, presentment for payment, notice of nonpayment, protest, notice of dishonor, notice of protest, and any and all other notices or demands in enforcement of this Promissory Note. All amounts payable hereunder shall be payable without relief from any applicable valuation or appraisement laws.

7. All payments hereunder shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America by check sent to the Indiana Office of Energy Development, 101 West Ohio Street, Suite 1250, Indianapolis, Indiana, 46204, or at such other place in Indiana as Lender may designate from time to time. If any payment shall become due on a Saturday, Sunday or any other day during which the State is not open for public business, then such payment shall be made on the succeeding business day at such office with the same effect as if made on the due date.

8. As more fully described in the Loan Agreement, in the event of the occurrence of an Event of Default, the entire unpaid principal balance shall, at the option of Lender, become immediately due and payable without further notice or demand until such default has been corrected. The Lender may then immediately exercise all remedies available to Lender at law and in equity, as well as all of those remedies set forth in this Promissory Note or in the Loan Agreement.  No failure on the part of Lender to exercise any of the Lender’s rights at law or in equity, or under this Promissory Note or under the Loan Agreement, shall be deemed a waiver of any such rights or of any default.

9. Time is of the essence with respect to all of Borrower’s obligations and agreements under this Promissory Note.

10. This Promissory Note is to be construed and enforced in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana.  This Promissory Note may not be changed, amended, or modified orally.  If any provision of this Promissory Note is held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Promissory Note shall remain in full force and effect and shall be liberally construed in favor of the Lender.

11. If this Promissory Note is placed in the hands of an attorney at law (including but not limited to the Office of the Attorney General of Indiana) for collection by reason of default on the part of the Borrower, the Borrower hereby agrees to pay the Lender, in addition to the sums stated above, the reasonable costs of collection, including a reasonable sum as attorney’s fees.

12. The Borrower and the signatories on the Promissory Note each hereby certify, recite, and declare that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the execution and delivery of this Promissory Note do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form, and manner as required by law.

13. Whenever used, the words Borrower and Lender shall include respective successors and assigns of the Borrower and Lender. This obligation shall bind the Borrower and its successors and assigns, and the benefits hereof shall inure to the Lender and its assigns, except that Borrower may not assign or transfer its rights and obligations hereunder without the written consent of the Lender.

[Signature Page Follows]

(Signature Page for Promissory Note)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has caused this Promissory Note to be duly executed and delivered to the Lender in Indianapolis, Indiana on this __ day of _______, 2009.

“Borrower”

By: 


Printed: 


Title: 

Date: 


EXHIBIT A

Disbursement Request

Indiana Office of Energy Development

101 West Ohio Street, Suite 1250

Indianapolis, IN  46204

Attention:  General Counsel


RE:
Disbursement Request

Ladies and Gentlemen:


Pursuant to Section 3 of the Promissory Note, dated as of August 1, 2009 (the “Promissory Note”), made by ____________________, a ________corporation (the “Borrower”), in favor of the Office of the Lieutenant Governor, Indiana Office of Energy Development (the “Lender”), and the Loan Agreement by and between the Borrower and the Lender, dated as of August 1, 2009 (the “Loan Agreement”), the Borrower hereby requests that the Lender disburse to Borrower $ __________ of the Loan (as defined in the Promissory Note) to reimburse the Borrower for the eligible Project expenses set forth on Schedule I attached hereto and incorporated herein.  The Borrower acknowledges that the requested disbursement will increase the outstanding principal amount of the Lender’s Promissory Note by the amount of such disbursement, as provided in the Promissory Note.


Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings given to them in the Promissory Note or the Loan Agreement (as applicable).


In connection with this request, the undersigned officer of the Borrower hereby certifies that, as such officer, he or she has access to the Borrower’s records and is familiar with the matters herein certified, and is authorized to execute and deliver this request in the name and on behalf of the Borrower, and that to the best of his or her knowledge:


1.
The representations and warranties of the Borrower contained in each of the Loan Documents are true and correct on the date hereof with the same effect as though made on and as of the date hereof.


2.
The other conditions to the making of the Loan specified in Article V of the Loan Agreement continue to be fulfilled on the date hereof.  Among such conditions and without limitation, after giving effect to the Loan (and the application of the proceeds thereof), no Default or Event of Default exists or shall occur and be continuing.


3.
No event or circumstance has occurred which is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the business or operations of the Borrower or on the Lender’s interest in the Collateral.


4.
Project expenditures set forth at Schedule I reflect the payment of eligible expenses under the Loan Agreement related to equipment to be installed at the Borrower’s _________, Indiana, facility.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this request has been duly executed and delivered by the undersigned duly authorized officer of the Borrower.

Dated: _______________________







____________________________. 







By: 














Its: 













Title: 








SCHEDULE I

Project Expenditures

No.
Vendor


Item


Date Paid

Amount

1. ________________

________________
__________

$___________

2. ________________

________________
__________

____________

SECURITY AGREEMENT

SECURITY AGREEMENT




, an [State] [corporate form] (“Borrower”), hereby grants a security interest to Office of the Lieutenant Govener, Indiana Office of Energy Development, 101 West Ohio Street, Suite 1250, Indianapolis, Indiana  46204 (hereinafter referred to as “Secured Party”), in and to and collaterally assigns to Secured Party all of its interest in, all assets of Borrower, wherever located, including without limitation all furnishings, equipment, fixtures, goods, machinery, computer and data processing systems, software and hardware, inventory (including, without limitation, raw materials, work in process, parts, supplies, finished goods, and materials used or consumed in Borrower’s business), whether now or hereafter acquired, and all additions and accessions thereto, all replacements and renewals of any part thereof, and the proceeds (including, without limitation, insurance, indemnity, warranty and guaranty proceeds) of any of these items and other articles of personal property of Borrower (the “Chattels”); all contracts, leases now or hereafter entered into by and between Borrower and any party; all accounts (as defined in the Indiana Uniform Commercial Code as presently or hereafter in effect  (“UCC”)), deposit accounts, credit card receivables, funds, instruments, documents, promissory notes, letter of credit rights, chattel paper (whether electronic or tangible), payables arising out of leases, licenses and/or assignments, and all other intangibles and general intangibles, other articles of tangible personal property, investment property and payment intangibles of Borrower, now acquired or hereafter arising, including, but not limited to, all customer lists, logo, good will, permits, licenses, operating rights, franchises, inventions, processes, formulae, patent rights, copyrights, copyright rights, trademarks, trademark rights, service marks, service mark rights, trade names, trade name rights, franchises, franchise rights and other like business property rights, and all applications to acquire such rights, for which application may at any time be made by Borrower; all refunds, payments, repayments, deposits, supporting obligations and monies received or to be received and all claims therefor, arising from or relating to the ownership, sale, lease or other disposition of any of the Collateral (as hereinafter defined), irrespective of the time period to which such refunds, payments, repayments, deposits or monies relate, including property tax or other tax refunds and utility refunds, rebates or deposits; and all additions and accessions thereto, all replacements and renewals of any part thereof, and the proceeds (including, without limitation, insurance, indemnity, warranty and guaranty proceeds) of any of these items, to the extent they are acquired with the proceeds of the Loan (all of which property, including the Chattels and all of the other aforementioned property is hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Collateral”).

If any personal property which becomes part of the Collateral is subject to a conditional bill of sale, security agreement or other lien covering such property, then, in the event of any Event of Default under this Security Agreement, all the right, title and interest of Borrower in and to any and all such personal property is hereby assigned to Secured Party, together with the benefits of any deposits or payments now or hereafter made by Borrower, or the predecessors or successors in title to Borrower in the Collateral.  Should Secured Party desire to impose the lien of this Security Agreement more specifically upon said fixtures and articles of said personal property, Borrower will make, execute and deliver, or cause to be made, executed or delivered, on demand such security instrument as may be deemed necessary or appropriate or required to effectuate the same.

It is the intention of Borrower and of this instrument, that the terms of the Security Agreement shall cover the interests of Borrower of whatever kind in and to all the chattel personal property of every kind and description owned by Borrower or in which Borrower may have an interest, and used or to be used in the operation of, or in connection with the operation of, the business of Borrower together with replacements of any of the chattel personal property presently owned by Borrower, and all increases and additions thereto, and all after acquired personal property used in connection with the business of Borrower or any interest therein, of any kind or description, hereafter acquired by Borrower for use in the operation of, or connected with the operation of, said business, which after acquired property shall become a part of the Collateral.

The interests of Secured Party hereunder shall be held by Secured Party and its successors and assigns, subject, however, to the terms and conditions of this Security Agreement.

ARTICLE I
SECURITY
Section 1.01.  Performance and Obligations Secured.  This Security Agreement is given to secure (a) the performance by Borrower of the covenants and agreements contained in (i) the Loan Agreement by and between Secured Party and Borrower of even date herewith (the “Loan Agreement”), and (b) the payment by Borrower of the indebtedness to Secured Party, evidenced by a Promissory Note in the principal amount of 


 Dollars ($

) of even date herewith executed by Borrower and payable to the order of Secured Party evidencing the amount of the loan to be made by Secured Party to Borrower with a maturity date of 

 (the “Note”) and any and all other indebtedness, future advances or obligations of Borrower now or hereafter incurred or arising pursuant to the provisions of the Note, the Loan Agreement or any other Loan Document (as defined in the Loan Agreement) (all of such indebtedness and obligations collectively referred to as the “Obligations”). This Security Agreement shall also secure any and all renewals or extensions of the whole or any part of the Obligations, however evidenced, with interest at such lawful rate as may be agreed upon, and any such renewals or extensions or any change in the terms or rate of interest shall not impair in any manner the validity of or the priority of this Security Agreement, nor release Borrower from liability for the Obligations.  Reference is hereby made to the Note, the Loan Agreement and all other Loan Documents as if set out here at length and incorporated herein.

ARTICLE II
REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS OF BORROWER
Borrower represents, covenants and agrees with Secured Party as follows:


Section 2.01.  Name; Formation.  Borrower represents and warrants that it is a [corporate form] duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of 

 under the name of 


.  Borrower does business in the State of Indiana under the name 



. Borrower’s chief executive office is at 



, 
, Indiana  
.

Section 2.02.  Covenants of Title.  Borrower warrants that it is lawfully possessed of and has good and complete title to all the Collateral, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances.

Section 2.03.  Covenant To Comply with Terms.  Borrower will pay and perform all Obligations, as the same become due, in accordance with its terms, without relief from valuation or appraisement laws, and it will keep, observe and perform all of the terms, provisions, covenants and agreements of this Security Agreement, the Note, the Loan Agreement and all other Loan Documents.

Section 2.04.  Covenant To Maintain, Repair and Replace Collateral.  Borrower, at all times, (i) will maintain, preserve and keep the Collateral in good repair, working order and condition; (ii) will not commit or suffer any waste thereof, reasonable wear and tear excepted; and (iii) will keep the Collateral free from all liens, encumbrances and security interests (other than those created or expressly permiited by the Security Agreement and the Loan Agreement).

Section 2.05.  Covenants Regarding Possession of Collateral.  Borrower shall have possession of the Collateral, except where expressly otherwise provided in this Security Agreement or where Secured Party chooses to perfect its security interest by possession in addition to the filing of a financing statement.  Where Collateral is in the possession of a third party, Borrower will, upon request of Secured Party after an Event of Default, join with Secured Party in notifying the third party of Secured Party’s security interest and obtaining an acknowledgment from the third party that it is holding the Collateral for the benefit of Secured Party.  Borrower will cooperate with Secured Party in obtaining control with respect to Collateral consisting of deposit account, investment property, letter of credit rights, and electronic chattel paper.  Borrower will not create any chattel paper without placing a legend on the chattel paper acceptable to Secured Party indicating that Secured Party has a security interest therein.

Section 2.06.  Additional Covenants.  Borrower covenants and agrees that Secured Party shall have the right at any time to enforce Borrower’s rights against account debtors and obligors.  Borrower further acknowledges and agrees that Secured Party does not authorize, and Borrower agrees not to, make any sales or leases of any of the Collateral, license any of the Collateral, or encumber or grant any other security interest in any of the Collateral.  Until the Obligations are paid in full, Borrower agrees that it will preserve its corporate existence and not, in one transaction or a series of related transactions, merge into or consolidate with any other entity, or sell all or substantially all of its assets, change the state of its organization, or change its legal name without the prior written approval of Secured Party.  Except with the prior written consent of the Secured Party and provided there is no Event of Default, the Borrower shall not remove any Collateral from any location as provided to the Secured Party except as disposed of as inventory in the ordinary course of business.

Section 2.07.  Security Agreement.  This Security Agreement is intended to be a security agreement pursuant to the UCC for any of the personal property and fixtures described herein.  Borrower agrees to execute and deliver, or cause to be executed and delivered, to Secured Party UCC financing statements covering said personal property and fixtures from time to time and in such form as Secured Party may reasonably require to perfect or maintain the priority of Secured Party’s security interest with respect to said personal property and fixtures, and Borrower shall bear all costs thereof.  Borrower will not create or suffer to be created any other security interest in said personal property and fixtures, including replacements thereof and additions thereto, except as otherwise authorized pursuant to this Security Agreement.  Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, Secured Party shall have the remedies of a secured party under the UCC and, at Secured Party’s option, may also invoke the remedies provided herein with respect to such property.  Borrower further authorizes and appoints Secured Party its attorney-in-fact, to execute and file on its behalf a financing statement or statements in those public offices deemed necessary by the Secured Party and authorizes Secured Party to file duplicates of any financing statements as determined by Secured Party.  Borrower will pay all filing fees for the filing of this instrument or of financing statements filed to perfect the security interest provided in this Security Agreement or in connection with this Security Agreement.

Section 2.08.  Further Assurances.  Borrower shall, on request of Secured Party, (i) promptly correct any defect, error or omission which may be discovered in the contents of this Security Agreement or in the Loan Agreement  or in the execution or acknowledgment thereof; (ii) execute, acknowledge, deliver and record or file such further instruments (including without limitation further security agreements, financing statements and continuation statements) and do such further acts as may be reasonably necessary, desirable or proper to carry out more effectively the purposes of this Security Agreement and the Loan Agreement  and to subject to the liens and security interests hereof and thereof any property intended by the terms hereof and thereof to be covered hereby and thereby including specifically, but without limitation, any renewals, additions, substitutions, replacements, or appurtenances to the Collateral; and (iii) execute, acknowledge, deliver, procure and record or file any document or instrument (including specifically any financing statement) deemed reasonably advisable by Secured Party to protect the lien or the security interest hereunder against the rights or interests of third persons, and Borrower shall pay all reasonable costs connected with any of the foregoing.  Borrower shall keep permanent records of all material information on the acquisition, maintenance, identification and disposition of all Collateral in a form acceptable to Secured Party.  Secured Party shall have the right to examine and copy these records at reasonable times and places.  Borrower agrees to furnish Secured Party with written reports on the Collateral with content and at times as Secured Party may reasonably request.  Borrower shall pay when due all taxes, assessments and liens upon the Collateral, its use or operation, upon this Security Agreement, the Note, the Loan Agreement or any Loan Document.

Section 2.09.  Compliance with Governmental Requirements.  Borrower shall comply promptly with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of all governmental authorities, now or hereafter in effect, applicable to the ownership, production, disposition, or use of the Collateral.  Borrower may contest in good faith any such law, ordinance or regulation and withhold compliance during any proceeding, including appropriate appeals, so long as Secured Party’s interest in the Collateral, in Secured Party’s opinion, is not jeopardized.

Section 2.10.  Hazardous Substances.  Borrower represents and warrants that the Collateral never has been, and never will be so long as this Security Agreement remains a lien on the Collateral, used in violation of any environmental laws or for the generation, manufacture, storage, transportation, treatment, disposal, release or threatened release of any hazardous substance in violation of any environmental law.  The representations and warranties contained herein are based on Borrower’s due diligence in investigating the Collateral for hazardous substances.  Borrower hereby (1) releases and waives any future claims against Secured Party for indemnity or contribution in the event Borrower becomes liable for cleanup or other costs under any environmental laws, and (2) agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Secured Party against any and all claims and losses resulting from a breach of this provision of this Security Agreement.  This obligation to indemnify and defend shall survive the payment of the obligations and the satisfaction of this Security Agreement.

ARTICLE III
DEFAULT AND RIGHTS AND REMEDIES OF SECURED PARTY UPON DEFAULT
Section 3.01.  Definition of Default.  The term “Event of Default,” wherever used in this Security Agreement, shall mean any one or more of the following events:

(a)
the occurrence of any Event of Default under the Note, the Loan Agreement or any other Loan Document; or

(b)
failure of Borrower, after applicable notice and cure periods, to comply with any covenant, term, agreement or condition contained in this Security Agreement.

Section 3.02.  Acceleration.  Upon any Event of Default, the unpaid balance of the Obligations shall, at the option of Secured Party, become immediately due and payable.  Notice of the exercise of this option is hereby waived by Borrower.

Section 3.03.  Remedies of Secured Party.  Upon any Event of Default, Secured Party shall have all the rights and remedies permitted under the UCC with respect to the security interest in the Collateral granted hereunder and all rights and remedies authorized under this Security Agreement and other laws.  The Borrower agrees in the Event of Default, the Collateral will be available to Secured Party at the Project location (as defined in the Loan Agreement).  If any notification or disposition of all or any portion of the Collateral is required by law, such notification or disposition of all or any portion of the Collateral is required by law, such notification shall be deemed reasonable and properly given if mailed at least ten (10) days prior to such disposition, postage prepaid to Borrower at the address appearing in this Security Agreement.  

Section 3.04.  Remedies Are Cumulative.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Secured Party is intended to be or shall be exclusive of any other remedy, but every remedy herein provided shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder, or in any instrument executed in connection herewith, or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, or by statute; and every such right and remedy may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.


In the event that Secured Party:  (a) grants any extension of time or forbearance with respect to the payment of any indebtedness secured by this Security Agreement; (b) takes other or additional security for the payment thereof; (c) waives or fails to exercise any right granted herein or under the Note, the Loan Agreement or any other Loan Document; (d) grants any release, with or without consideration, of the whole or any part of the security held for the payment of the debt secured hereby; (e) amends or modifies in any respect with the consent of Borrower any of the terms and provisions hereof or of the Note, the Loan Agreement or any other Loan Document; then and in any such event, such act or omission to act shall not release Borrower, or any co‑maker, surety, or guarantor of this Security Agreement or of the Note, the Loan Agreement or any other Loan Document, under any covenant of this Security Agreement or of the Note, the Loan Agreement or any other Loan Document, nor preclude Secured Party from exercising any right, power, or privilege herein granted or intended to be granted in the event of any other Event of Default then made or any subsequent Event of Default and without in any way impairing or affecting the lien or priority of this Security Agreement.

ARTICLE IV
MISCELLANEOUS
Section 4.01.  Successors and Assigns.  Reference in this Security Agreement to Borrower and Secured Party shall in each case be deemed to include the successors and assigns of such party, and all the covenants, stipulations and agreements herein contained are and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and their respective successors and assigns.

Section 4.02.  Severability of Provisions.  In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Security Agreement or in the Note, the Loan Agreement, or any other Loan Document, the performance of which are secured hereunder, should be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein and therein shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

Section 4.03.  Applicable Law.  This Security Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana.

Section 4.04.  Notice.  All notices, requests, demands and other communications provided for hereunder shall be in writing (including telegraphic communication) and mailed by certified or registered mail or delivered via reputable national overnight courier to the applicable party at the address indicated below.

To Secured Party:
Indiana Office of Energy Development

Attn:  General Counsel
101 West Ohio Street, Suite 1250

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

With a copy to:
Matt Tuohy

Loan Officer

One North Capitol Avenue, Suite 900

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

To Borrower:








Attn:  Chief Executive Officer





, Indiana  

or, as to each party, at such other address as shall be designated by such parties in a written notice to the other party complying as to delivery with the terms of this Section.  All such notices, requests, demands and other communications shall, when mailed or delivered, be effective when deposited in the mails or delivered to the reputable national overnight courier, respectively, addressed as aforesaid.

Section 4.05.  Duplicate Financing Statements.  A photographic or other reproduction of this Security Agreement or of any financing statement relating to this Security Agreement shall be sufficient as a financing statement.

Section 4.06.  Attorney Fees.  Borrower agrees to pay upon demand all of the Secured Party’s costs and expenses, including Secured Party’s attorneys’ fees and Secured Party’s legal expenses incurred in connection with the enforcement of this Security Agreement.  Secured Party may hire or pay someone else to help enforce this Security Agreement, and Borrower shall pay the costs and expenses of such enforcement.  Costs and expenses include Secured Party’s attorneys’ fees and legal expenses whether or not there is a lawsuit, including attorneys’ fees and legal expenses for bankruptcy proceedings (including efforts to modify or vacate any automatic stay or injunction), appeals, and any anticipated post-judgment collection services.  Borrower also shall pay all court costs and such additional fees as may be directed by the court.


Section 4.07.  Joint and Several Liability.  Each of the parties identified as Borrower will be jointly and severally liable for the obligations represented by this Security Agreement, and the term “Borrower” will mean any one or more of such parties, and the receipt of value by any one of them will constitute the receipt of value by the other.  This Security Agreement shall be binding on each Borrower and its successors.
Borrower has caused this Security Agreement to be executed as of the ____ day of August, 2009

By: 







Printed: 






Title: 







STATE OF INDIANA

)





)  SS:

COUNTY OF __________
)

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared ______________________, by me known and by me known to be the ______________________ of _________________, who acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Security Agreement on behalf of said corporation.

Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this ___day of August, 2009.

Notary Public

(Printed Signature)

My Commission Expires:




My County of Residence:




LOAN GUARANTY

LOAN GUARANTY

This Loan Guaranty (the “Guaranty”), executed by ____________.. a __________ Corporation with an office located at ______________, _______________ (the “Guarantor”) in favor of the Office of the Lieutenant Governor, Indiana Office of Energy Development, for and on behalf of the State of Indiana, principally located at 101 West Ohio Street, Suite 1250, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 (the “Lender”):

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Lender has executed a Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with ___________________ (the “Borrower”) dated on even date herewith pursuant to which the Lender desires to provide, and the Borrower desires to accept, a Loan as evidenced by the Promissory Note, the Security Agreement and the other Loan Documents and pursuant to the terms of the Loan Agreement, which Loan Agreement is hereby incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Promissory Note, the Security Agreement and any and all other Loan Documents, the Borrower has undertaken and incurred, or has agreed to undertake and incur, certain obligations, liabilities, and indebtedness to Lender, now or hereafter, together with all: (a) interest accruing thereon; and (b) costs and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred by Lender in the enforcement or collection thereof; whether such obligations, liabilities, and indebtedness are direct, indirect, fixed, contingent, liquidated, un-liquidated, joint, several, or joint and several (collectively, the “Obligations”); 

WHEREAS, Lender, as a condition to entering into the Loan, has required that Guarantor enter into this Guaranty; and

WHEREAS, terms not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the Loan Agreement;

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged hereby, Guarantor covenants and agrees as follows:

1. Guaranty.  Guarantor absolutely and unconditionally guarantees the full and prompt payment and performance when due of the Obligations.  This Guaranty shall continue, in full force and effect throughout the term of the Loan Agreement, Promissory Note, the Security Agreement and other Loan Documents and thereafter, until all of the Obligations are paid and performed in full, regardless of whether any of the foregoing agreements is terminated or expires.

2. Waivers.  Guarantor expressly waives: (a) presentment for payment, demand, notice of demand and dishonor, protest, and notice of protest and nonpayment or nonperformance of the Obligations; and (b) diligence in: (i) enforcing payment or performance of, or collecting, the Obligations; (ii) exercising the rights or remedies under the Loan Agreement, the Promissory Note, the Security Agreement and other Loan Documents; (iii) bringing suit against Borrower or any other party, (iv) any claims that the fact that the amount or value of any of the Collateral may at any time have been or be incorrectly estimated, released or substituted; or (v) relief from valuation and appraisement laws.  Lender shall be under no obligation: (A) to notify Guarantor of: (i) its acceptance of this Guaranty; or (ii) the failure of Borrower to timely pay or perform any of the Obligations; or (B) to use diligence in: (i) preserving the liability of Borrower or any other party; or (ii) bringing suit to enforce payment or performance of, or to collect, the Obligations.  To the full extent allowed by applicable law, Guarantor waives all defenses: (y) given to sureties or guarantors at law or in equity, other than the actual payment and performance of the Obligations; and (z) based upon questions as to the validity, legality, or enforceability of the Obligations.  The payment by Guarantor of any amount pursuant to this Guaranty shall not in any way entitle Guarantor to any right, title, or interest (whether by way of subrogation or otherwise) in and to: (X) any of the Obligations; (Y) any proceeds thereof; or (Z) any security therefor.  Guarantor unconditionally waives: (1) any claim or other right now existing or hereafter arising against Borrower or any other party that arises from, or by virtue of, the existence or performance of this Guaranty (including, without limitation, any right of subrogation, reimbursement, exoneration, contribution, indemnification, or to payment); and (2) any right to participate or share in any right, remedy, or claim of Lender.

3. Rights.  Lender, without: (a) authorization from, or notice to, Guarantor; and/or (b) impairing or affecting the liability of Guarantor hereunder; from time to time, at its discretion and with or without consideration, may: (i) alter, compromise, accelerate, or extend the time or manner for the payment or performance of any or all of the Obligations; (ii) increase or reduce the rate of interest payable on any or all of the Obligations; (iii) release, discharge, or increase the obligations of Borrower; (iv) add, release, discharge, or increase the obligations of any other endorsers, sureties, guarantors, or other obligors; (v) make changes of any sort whatever in the terms or conditions of: (A) payment or performance of the Obligations, or (B) doing business with Borrower or any other party; (vi) settle or compromise with Borrower or any other party on such terms and conditions as Lender may determine to be in its best interests; and (vii) apply all moneys received from Borrower or any other party against the payment of the Obligations (regardless of whether then due) as Lender may determine to be in its best interests, without in any way being required to: (A) marshal securities or assets; or (B) apply all or any part of such moneys against any particular part of the Obligations.  Lender is not required to retain, protect, exercise due care with respect to, perfect security interests in, or otherwise assure or safeguard any collateral or security for the Obligations.  No exercise, or failure to exercise, by Lender of any right or remedy in any way shall: (y) affect: (i) any of the obligations of Guarantor hereunder; or (ii) any collateral or security furnished by Guarantor; or (z) give Guarantor any recourse against Lender.

4. Continuing Liability.  Notwithstanding the dissolution, bankruptcy or termination of Borrower or any other party, the liability of Guarantor hereunder shall continue.  The failure by Lender to file or enforce a claim against the estate (either in administration, bankruptcy, or other proceeding) of Borrower or any other party shall not affect the liability of Guarantor hereunder.  Guarantor shall not be released from liability hereunder if recovery from Borrower or any other party: (a) becomes barred by any statute of limitations; or (b) otherwise is restricted, prevented, or unavailable.  This is an obligation of guaranty not suretyship.

5. Action by Lender.  Lender shall not be required to pursue any other rights or remedies before invoking the benefits of this Guaranty.  Specifically, Lender shall not be required to exhaust its rights and remedies against Borrower or any other endorser, surety, guarantor, or other obligor.  Lender may maintain an action on this Guaranty, regardless of whether: (a) Borrower is joined in such action; or (b) a separate action is brought against Borrower.

6. Default.  Guarantor absolutely and unconditionally covenants and agrees that, if: (a) Borrower defaults for any reason in the payment or performance of all or any part of the Obligations; and (b) Lender exercises any of its rights or remedies under the Loan Agreement, the Promissory Note, the Security Agreement or other Loan Documents; then Guarantor shall pay, upon demand, such amounts as may be due to Lender as a result of the default by Borrower and the exercise by Lender of its rights or remedies, without: (i) further notice of default or dishonor; and (ii) any notice with respect to any matter or occurrence having been given to Guarantor previous to such demand.  No act or thing need occur to establish liability of the Guarantor and not act or thing, except full payment and discharge of all of the Obligations shall in any way exonerate the Guarantor or modify, reduce, limit or release the liability of the Guarantor.  The Guarantor’s obligations under this Guaranty are irrespective of the regularity of any writing, document or instrument of any other Loan Document.

7. Preference.  If: (a) any payment by Borrower to Lender is held to constitute a preference under any bankruptcy law; or (b) Lender is required for any reason to refund any such payment, or pay the amount thereof to any party; then: (i) such payment by Borrower to Lender shall not constitute a release of Guarantor from any liability under this Guaranty; (ii) Guarantor shall pay the amount thereof to Lender upon demand; and (iii) this Guaranty shall continue to be effective or shall be reinstated, as the case may be, to the extent of any such payment.

8. Subordinated Debt.  Guarantor expressly agrees that: (a) all Subordinated Debt (as defined below) shall be subordinated to the Obligations; (b) it shall not receive or accept any payment from Borrower with respect to the Subordinated Debt at any time from and after an Event of Default; and (c) if it receives or accepts any payment from Borrower on the Subordinated Debt in violation of this section, then Guarantor shall: (i) hold such payment in trust for Lender; and (ii) immediately turn such payment over to Lender, in the form received, to be applied to the Obligations.  For purposes of this Guaranty, “Subordinated Debt” shall mean all obligations, liabilities, and indebtedness of Borrower to Guarantor, together with all interest accruing thereon, whether such obligations, liabilities, and indebtedness are: (A) direct, indirect, fixed, contingent, liquidated, un-liquidated, joint, several, joint and several, or evidenced by a written instrument; or (B) now due or hereafter to be due, now existing or hereafter owed, or now held or hereafter to be held by Guarantor.

9. Representations.  Guarantor hereby represents and warrants to Lender that: (a) this Guaranty is the legal, valid, and binding obligation of Guarantor, enforceable against Guarantor in accordance with its terms and conditions; (b) there is no action or proceeding at law or in equity, or by or before any court or governmental instrumentality or agency, now pending against or, to the knowledge of Guarantor, threatened against, Guarantor that may materially and adversely affect the financial condition of Guarantor; (c) all balance sheets, earnings statements, and other financial data that have been or hereafter may be furnished to Lender in connection with this Guaranty do and shall represent fairly the financial condition of Guarantor as of the dates on which, and for the periods for which, such balance sheets, earning statements, and other data are furnished; (d) all other information, reports, and other papers and data furnished to Lender shall be: (i) accurate and correct in all respects at the time given; and (ii) complete, such that Lender is given a true and  accurate reporting of the subject matter; (e) Guarantor is solvent; and (f) Guarantor has a direct and substantial economic interest in Borrower and expects to derive substantial business, economic and other benefits from the Loan.

10. Statements.  Guarantor shall provide to Lender, within ten business (10) days after receipt of a written request from Lender, financial statements that include such information and certifications with respect to the assets, liabilities, obligations, and income of Guarantor as Lender reasonably may request from time to time.

11. Miscellaneous.  The rights of Lender are cumulative and shall not be exhausted: (a) by its exercise of any of its rights and remedies against Guarantor under this Guaranty or otherwise; or (b) by any number of successive actions; until and unless each and all of the obligations of Guarantor under this Guaranty have been paid, performed, satisfied, and discharged in full.  This Guaranty shall be deemed to have been made under, and shall be governed by, the laws of the State of Indiana in all respects and shall not be modified or amended, except by a writing signed by Lender and Guarantor.  This Guaranty shall bind Guarantor and its successors, assigns, and legal representatives; and inure to the benefit of all transferees, credit participants, endorsees, successors, and assigns of Lender.  If the status of Borrower changes, then this Guaranty shall continue, and cover the Obligations of Borrower in its new status, all according to the terms and conditions hereof.  Lender is relying, and is entitled to rely, upon each and every one of the terms and conditions of this Guaranty.  Accordingly, if any term or condition of this Guaranty is held to be invalid or ineffective, then all other terms and conditions shall continue in full force and effect.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Guarantor has executed this Guaranty as of the __ day of ____, 2009.

_______________________

By:





Printed:





Its:




ATTACHMENT B

NEPA EF-1
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GO-EF1
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
(2/06/02)
GOLDEN FIELD OFFICE

	     ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

(To Be Completed by Potential Recipient)


The Department of Energy (DOE) is required by the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) of 1969 as amended (42 U.S.C. 4332(2), 40 CFR parts 1500-1508) and DOE implementing regulations (10 CFR 1021) to consider the environmental effects resulting from federal actions, including providing financial assistance.  Please provide the following information to facilitate DOE’s environmental review.  DOE needs to evaluate the requested information as part of your award negotiation.

Instructions and Handbook:  Terms that appear in blue have more detailed information available to assist you in completing the form.  Save the form to your local directory.  Leave your internet browser open and open the form in Word from the local directory.  Click on the blue term and it will automatically open the handbook at the appropriate place.  Click on the back button to return to your form.  Or, you may click here to open the handbook.

PART I:
General Information 

	Project Title:
	


	Solicitation Number:
	


1.
Please describe the intended use of DOE funding in your proposed project.  For example, would the funding be applied to the entire project or only support a phase of the project?  Describe the activity as specifically as possible, i.e. planning, feasibility study, design, data analysis, education or outreach activities, construction, capital purchase and/or equipment installation or modification.  

2.
Does any part of your project require review and/or permitting by any other federal, state, regional, local, environmental, or regulatory agency?           FORMCHECKBOX 
  Yes
 FORMCHECKBOX 
   No

    If yes, please provide a list of required reviews and permits in the appropriate item number in Part II.

3.
Has any review (e.g., NEPA documentation, permits, agency consultations) been completed?     FORMCHECKBOX 
  Yes
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  No  

     If yes, is a finding or report available and how can a copy be obtained?

4.
Is the proposed project part of a larger scope of work?   FORMCHECKBOX 
  Yes
   FORMCHECKBOX 
    No    If yes, please describe.

Do you anticipate requesting additional federal funding for subsequent phases of this project?    FORMCHECKBOX 
  Yes
 FORMCHECKBOX 
   No 

If yes, please describe.

5.
Does the scope of your project only involve one or more of the following:

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Information gathering such as literature surveys, inventories, audits,

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Data analysis including computer modeling,

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Document preparation such as design, feasibility studies, analytical energy supply and demand studies, or

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Information dissemination, including document mailings, publication, distribution, training, conferences, and informational programs.

If the scope of your project is limited to the block(s) checked above, please skip to Part III, otherwise, continue to Part II.

PART II: Environmental Considerations
Table A.
Please indicate if any of the following conditions or special areas is present, required, or could be affected by your project:

	Item

No.
	Description
	Yes/No
	Specific nature or type of activity or condition.  If a consultation, approval, or permit applies, please describe.

	1
	Clearing or Excavation (indicate if greater than 1 acre)
	
	

	2
	Dredge and/or Fill. Specify the number of acres involved.
	
	

	3
	New or Modified Federal/State Permits
And/or Requests for Exemptions
	
	

	4
	Pre-Existing Contamination

	
	

	5
	Asbestos 


	
	

	6
	Criteria Pollutants

	
	

	7
	Non-Attainment Areas

	
	

	8
	Class I Air Quality Control Region

	
	

	9
	Navigable Air Space

	
	

	10
	Areas with Special Designation (e.g., National Forests, Parks, Trails)


	
	

	11
	Prime, Unique or Important Farmland

	
	

	12
	Archeological/Cultural Resources

	
	

	13
	Threatened/Endangered Species and/or Critical Habitat
	
	

	14
	Other Protected Species (Wild Burros, Migratory Birds)
	
	

	15
	Floodplains

	
	

	16
	Special Sources of Groundwater (e.g., Sole Source Aquifer)
	
	

	17
	Underground Extraction/Injection
(non-hazardous substances)


	
	

	18
	Wetlands

	
	

	19
	Coastal Zones

	
	

	20
	Public Issues or Concerns

	
	

	21
	Noise

	
	

	22
	Depletion of a Non-Renewable Resource  


	
	

	23
	Aesthetics

	
	


Table B.
Would your project use, disturb, or produce any chemicals or biological substances?  (i.e., pesticides, industrial process, fuels, lubricants, bacteria)  If not, skip to Section C.

Please indicate if any of the materials or processes listed below applies.

	Item No.
	Description
	Yes/No
	Quantity
	Permit required? Type?
	Specific type, use, or condition

	1
	Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs)


	
	
	
	

	2
	Import, Manufacture, or Processing of Toxic Substances

	
	
	
	

	3
	Chemical Storage, Use, and Disposal

	
	
	
	

	4
	Pesticide Use

	
	
	
	

	5
	Hazardous, Toxic, or Criteria Pollutant Air Emissions

	
	
	
	

	6
	Liquid Effluent

	
	
	
	

	7
	Underground Extraction/Injection
(hazardous substances)


	
	
	
	

	8
	Hazardous Waste

	
	
	
	

	9
	Underground Storage Tanks

	
	
	
	

	10
	Biological Materials.  Indicate if genetically altered materials are involved.
	
	
	
	


Table C.
Would your project require or produce any radiological materials?   If not, skip to Part III.

Please indicate if any of the materials listed below applies.

	Item No.
	Description
	Yes/No
	Quantity 
	Permit required? Type?
	Specific nature of use

	1
	Radioactive Mixed Waste

	
	
	
	

	2
	Radioactive Waste

	
	
	
	

	3
	Radiation Exposures

	
	
	
	


Part III: Contact Information
Please provide the name of the preparer of this form and a contact person who can answer questions or provide additional information.

	Preparer
	
	Telephone Number
	
	E-mail Address
	


	Contact
	
	Telephone Number
	
	E-mail Address
	


ATTACHMENT C
PROJECT OBJECTIVES FORM
All applicants must complete the following thirteen (13) items.  Applicants may attach supporting documentation consistent with Section 3.4 of the RFP.   If indicated, Applicants may respond to a particular item by attaching its response to this Form.

1. Description of the Project that Applicant Desires to Undertake to Accelerate Production or Market Acceptance of Commercially Viable Renewable Energy Products.

2. Description of Renewable Energy Products to be produced or commercialized. 

3. Explain the role of the Project’s Renewable Energy Products, which when deployed, will reduce energy use by up to 50%, relative to current industry standards for comparable traditional or older model products based on the non-renewable energy source being replaced.  Document and quantify the energy savings or replacement that result from use of the Renewable Energy Products by kwh, therms, gallons, BTUs, etc and provide relevant useful data that shows how Renewable Energy Products is superior to traditional or older model products or production sources based on current industry standards.  (Applicant may attach a response not to exceed 3 pages.)
4. Estimate the units of Renewable Energy Products projected to be produced at the Project location for each calendar year through 2025.
(If more than one (1) Renewable Energy Product is projected to be produced at the Project location, Applicants are encouraged to consolidate Items 2 through 4 and to organize by type of Renewable Energy Project in the form of an attachment not to exceed 2 pages.)
5. Explanation of how a Loan will impact Applicant’s ability to accelerate its commercial activities to meet a realized or projected increase in demand for the Renewable Energy Products. 

6. Description of all products produced at the Project location, percentage of Renewable Energy Products produced or expected to be produced at the Project location in the next five (5) years, percentage of the Applicant’s (and if applicable parent company’s) product portfolio that consists of Renewable Energy Products for the past three (3) years and projections for the next five (5) years.  Provide a description of capital and other company resources that Applicant has invested in the production of Renewable Energy Products including a comparison to the company’s investments over the past three (3) years in other company products.  (Applicant may attach a response not to exceed 2 pages.) 

7. Provide a list of Equipment or systems proposed to financed through Loan proceeds.  To the best of Applicant’s ability, itemize the equipment list by its projected cost and function in the commercialization process when installed and placed into operations.  While the Program focuses on the commercialization of Renewable Energy Products, please also identify to the best of Applicant’s ability any energy savings to be realized by Applicant as a result of Applicant’s use of the equipment described itemized by equipment type and, if possible, by a unit of energy saved or replaced (kwh/therms/gallons/BTUs/etc).  If applicable and available, please estimate the cost saving projected as a result of any energy savings realized by the Applicant and any reduction in GHG emissions reduced (CO2 equivalents) or air pollutant emissions resulting from the installation and use of the equipment (per year).  (Final descriptions of equipment will be necessary prior to disbursement of Loan proceeds). (Applicant may respond by attaching equipment lists but must provide a summary of the information requested for each piece of equipment.)
8. Explanation of need for equipment and description of proposed disbursement of Loan proceeds for said equipment, including but not limited to, estimated purchase, installation, vendor payment date and desired reimbursement date by Loan proceeds.  (Applicant may consolidate responses to Item 7 & 8 if appropriate.)
9. Description of how the Project will result in the Applicant employing additional new full-time employees (as defined in IC 6-3.1-13-4). (Applicant may refer, if appropriate, to Attachment D.)
10. Explain any local governmental incentives or support offered for the Project and attach all documentation.

11. Describe Applicant’s prior experiences in the Renewable Energy Products industry, including examples evidencing Applicant’s ability to produce Renewable Energy Products whether in Indiana or elsewhere and list all locations of those examples by address. (Applicant may attach a response not to exceed 2 pages).
12. Please provide a total Project budget necessary to achieve the Projects Objectives set forth your Proposal through 2012, how Applicant anticipates funding the Project should the Applicant be awarded a Loan, and describe the Applicant’s current status in securing the funding necessary to complete the Project.  Please explain the direct affect on the Project if the Project was awarded a Loan in an amount less than the amount set forth in the Applicant’s Proposal. (Applicant may attach a response not to exceed 3 pages).
13. If the Applicant (or its parent company if applicable) has operations in the State of Indiana, please provide its Indiana Department of Revenue account number, Indiana Department of Workforce Development account number, and a copy of its most recent Merit Rate Notice (State Form 34913).
ATTACHMENT D
INDIANA ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT
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